
Page 1 of 9 
 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI  
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 
91-5420 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi, and Zoom:  Meeting ID: 609 754 2925 

Tuesday, February 21, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. to be continued, if necessary, on 
Wednesday, February 22, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. 
Livestream available at www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live 

 
Note: Commission Meeting Packets will be available at dhhl.hawaii.gov by Thursday, February 16, 2023. 

 
I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
A. Roll Call 
B. Approval of Agenda 
C. Approval of Minutes:  

a. January 17 & 18, 2023 Regular Meeting 
b. January 27, 2023 Special Meeting 

D. Public Testimony on Agendized Items - see information below 
 
Public testimony on any item relevant to this agenda may be taken at this time, or a testifier may 
wait to testify at the time the agenda item is called for discussion. Pursuant to section 92-3, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, and section 10-2-11(c), Hawaii Administrative Rules, the Chair of the 
Commission has the authority to impose reasonable conditions to ensure an orderly and efficient 
meeting.  

 
II. ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING 

 
A. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Homestead Services Division 
 
D-2 Approval of Consent to Mortgage (see exhibit) 
D-3 Approval of Streamline Refinance of Loans (see exhibit) 
D-4 Ratification of Loan Approvals (see exhibit) 
D-5 Approval of Homestead Application Transfers / Cancellations (see exhibit) 
D-6 Commission Designation of Successors to Application Rights – Public Notice 2018, 

2020 & 2021 (see exhibit) 
D-7 Reinstatement of Deferred Application – SHARON L. VERANO 
D-8 Approval to Certify Applications of Qualified Applicants for the Month of January 2023 

(see exhibit) 
D-9 Approval of Assignment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 
D-10 Approval of Amendment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 
D-11 Approval to Issue Non-Exclusive Licenses for Rooftop Photovoltaic Systems for Certain 

Lessees (see exhibit) 
  

B. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Office of the Chairman 
 
C-1 Approval of Lease Awards: Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai Subdivision Phase II–Residential Vacant 

Lots– Anahola, Kauaʻi; Discovery Harbour – Residential Vacant Lot–Kaʻu, Hawaii; 
Waianae Valley Subdivision – Preowned Home and Waianae Kai Subdivision 1 – 
Preowned Home – Waianae, Oahu; Nanakuli Residence Lots 1st Series – Preowned Home 
– Nanakuli, Oahu. (see exhibit) 

http://www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live


Page 2 of 9 
 

 
 Land Management Division 
  

F-1 Approval to First Amendment to Right of Entry No. 690, Pa’upena Community 
Development Inc., Waiohuli-Keokea, Maui, TMK (2) 2-2-034:026 (portion) & 028 
(portion) 

F-2 Approval to Issue Right of Entry Permit to Pacific Transfer, LLC, Shafter Flats, 
Mapunapuna, Island of Oahu, TMK No. (1) 1-1-064:010 

F-3 Direct the Department to evaluate whether Act 279 (SLH 2022) funds should be used to 
pursue geothermal resource development as a means to generate revenue to reduce the 
homestead applicant waiting list. 

 
 Planning Office 
  

G-1 Support Establishment of a New DHHL Water Division 
G-2 Accept the Beneficiary Consultation Report for a Land Use Amendment to the Kauaʻi 

Island Plan, Kukulu Kumuhana o Anahola’s (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project, 
Anahola, Kawaihau, Kauaʻi, (TMK (4) 4-8-003:019 (por.) 

 
III. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
The Commission anticipates convening an executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(4), 
HRS, to consult with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Commission’s 
powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities on the following matters:  

 
1. Authorization to settle Matsushima v. Hawaiian Homes Commission, Civil No. 1CCV-

21-0001526. 
2. Discussion on delinquent right of entry permits issued for use of Hawaiian home lands 

in Kalaeloa, Island of Oahu  
3. Update on Kalima, et al. v. State of Hawaii, Civil No. 99-4771-12 
4. Update on discussions with Department of Interior regarding Act 236 (SLH 2021) 

  
IV. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 

A. REGULAR ITEMS 
 

Office of the Chair 
 
C-2 For Information Only – 2023 Legislative Session Update 
C-3 For Information Only – Draft Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant Annual Housing 

Plan 2023-2024 
 

Homestead Services Division 
 
D-1 HSD Status Reports 

 A.-Homestead Lease and Application Totals and Monthly Activity Reports 
 B.-Delinquency Reports 
 C.-DHHL Guarantees for FHA Construction Loans 

 
Land Management Division 

 
F-4 For Information Only – Right of Entry Permit to Rojac Trucking, Inc., Kahikinui, Maui, 

TMK No. (2)1-9-001:003(por.) 



Page 3 of 9 
 

F-5 For Information Only – Status on General Lease Extensions in Moanalua Kai, Island of 
Oahu, TMK Nos. (1) 1-1-064:008, :009, :012, :013, :014, :015, :016, and :017 

 
Land Development Division 
 
E-1 For Information Only – Implementation Progress Report, as of February 13, 2023, for Act 

279, Session Laws of Hawaii 2022 
E-2 For Information Only – Kapolei Project Updates 
 
Planning Office 
 
G-3 For Information Only – ʻEwa Moku Region Plan Implementation Update 
G-4 For Information Only – Fiscal Year 2023 DHHL Grant Solicitation Status Update 

 
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND RECESS 

 
1. DHHL Community Meeting– Tuesday, February 21, 2023. 6:30 p.m., Kapolei Middle 

School, 91-5335 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Hawaii, 96707 
  



Page 4 of 9 
 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 
91-5420 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi, and Zoom:  Meeting ID: 609 754 2925 

Wednesday, February 22, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. 
Livestream available at www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live 

 
I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
A. Roll Call 
B. Public Testimony on Agendized Items - see information below 

 
Public testimony on any item relevant to this agenda may be taken at this time, or a testifier may 
wait to testify at the time the agenda item is called for discussion. Pursuant to section 92-3, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, and section 10-2-11(c), Hawaii Administrative Rules, the Chair of the Commission 
has the authority to impose reasonable conditions to ensure an orderly and efficient meeting.  

 
II. ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING 

  
A. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
Land Management Division 

 
F-4 Approval to Issue Right of Entry Permit to Rojac Trucking, Inc., Kahikinui, Maui, 

TMK No. (2)1-9-001:003(por.)  
 

III. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 

B. GENERAL AGENDA 
 

Requests to Address the Commission 
 

J-1 Cindy Freitas – Various Concerns 
J-2 Dayne Kahau – Lease Issue 
J-3 Blossom Freitas – Various Concerns 
J-4 Simeon Butch Ramos – Kewalo Lease Concerns 
J-5 Lily Napoleon – Naiwa Agricultural Subdivision Alliance. 
J-6 Bo Kahui – Laʻi Opua Community Development Corp. 
J-7 Meghann Matsuda – Proposal for displaced individuals 
J-8 Steve Bess – Mediation Services 
J-9 Maxine Kahaulelio – Puukapu Farm Lot 
J-10 Faith Chase - Maui Beneficiary Association 
J-11 Robert and Sharmaine Taua – Nanakuli Lease Concerns 
J-12 Kamuela Hambek – Homestead Hale Building 
J-13 Julie Louie – Payment Dispute 
   

IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADJOURNMENT 
 

A. Next HHC Meeting – March 20 & 21, 2023, Hale Ponoʻī, Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands, Kapolei, Oahu 

B. Next DHHL Community Meeting – March 20, 2023,  
C. Adjournment 

 

http://www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live


Page 5 of 9 
 

 
________________________________ 
Ikaika Anderson, Chairman Designate 
Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
 Randy K. Awo, Maui     Zachary Z. Helm, Molokaʻi  
 Patricia A. Teruya, Oʻahu      Makai Freitas, West Hawaiʻi 
 Pauline N. Namuʻo, Oʻahu     Dennis L. Neves, Kauaʻi  
 Michael L. Kaleikini, East Hawaiʻi     Russell K. Ka‘upu, Oʻahu   
 
 
If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, contact Michael Lowe at 620-9512, 
or michael.l.lowe@hawaii.gov, as soon as possible, preferably by February 16, 2023. If a response is received after 
then, we will try to obtain the auxiliary aid/service or accommodation, but we cannot guarantee that the request will 
be fulfilled. Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats. 

 
Public Testimony on Agendized Items can be provided either as: (1) in person at the meeting location, by filling out 
a form at the reception table, (2) written testimony mailed to Commission Testimony, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, HI, 
96815, or emailed to DHHL.icro@hawaii.gov by February 16, 2023, or (3) live, oral testimony online by joining the 
Zoom meeting and relabeling your profile to include the agenda item you wish to testify on.  Please keep your 
computer muted and your camera off until you are called. You will need a computer with internet access, video 
camera and microphone to participate. Testimony may be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes per person. 
 
Disruption of Interactive Teachnology – Please reconnect to the same Zoom link listed on the agenda. 

        
  



Page 6 of 9 
 

 
                                                                    ITEM C-1 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARDS PIʻILANI MAI KE KAI SUBDIVISION PHASE II – 
RESIDENTIAL VACANT LOTS- ANAHOLA, KAUAI 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 
THOMAS NIZO   05/15/1990             30            (4) 4-8-022-119          12992 
HENRY LONOKALANIKAI SMITH  

04/09/1991              21            (4) 4-8-022-110          12995 
HARRY K KANOHO              11/13/1987              13            (4) 4-8-022-102          12996 
LUELLA H LEMN  10/21/1988              9            (4) 4-8-022-098          12997 
JOWELL Y.L. ENRIQUE          03/05/1986              48            (4) 4-8-022-137          12998 
WILLIAM K BOYD              02/14/1986        42            (4) 4-8-022-131          12999 
CHARLEEN L CUMMINGS    02/24/1987              12            (4) 4-8-022-101          13000 
EMILY TUNG-LOONG            02/10/1986              49            (4) 4-8-022-138          13001 
ALBERT WONG JR.  04/05/1983       4            (4) 4-8-022-093        13006 
 

APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD DISCOVERY HARBOUR – RESIDENTIAL VACANT LOT –  
KAʻU, HAWAII 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 
ROY A. LOANDO SR.               10/23/2003             610            (3) 9-4-017-083             13002 
 

APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD WAIANAE VALLEY SUBDIVISION – PREOWNED HOME –
WAIANAE, OAHU 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 
CHARLOTTE P KAHALEWAI    03/21/1974             21          (1) 8-5-036-021              13003    

 
APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD NANAKULI LOTS 1ST SERIES – PREOWNED HOME – 

NANAKULI, OAHU 
NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 
SARAH L.N. NAONE                    02/27/1962          232A (1) 8-9-004-069        13004       
 

APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD WAIANAE KAI SUBDIVISION UNIT 1 – PREOWNED HOME – 
WAIANAE, OAHU 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 
CHARLES K. LOPES III                01/17/1963          121           (1) 8-6-023-121             13005       

 
 

ITEM D-2 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT TO MORTGAGE 

   
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

BALDADO, Dorene P. 4250 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
ELENEKE, Shalei J. K. 4123 Waimanalo, Oahu 
ISHIKAWA, Melvin S. 8552 Princess Kahanu Estates, Oahu 
KAAHANUI, Kaniela H. K. 7543 Waiohuli, Maui 
KAAKAU, Lynn Ann K. 11704 Kanehili, Oahu 
MARDONADA, Raimie 11047 Anahola, Kauai 
SUAPAIA, Richard K. 10357 Lealii, Maui 
TABALI, James P. 3084 Nanakuli, Oahu 
  

 
 

 



Page 7 of 9 
 

ITEM D-3 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF STREAMLINE REFINANCE OF LOANS 

   
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

ALAMA, Margaret Ann D. K. 11414 Kaupea, Oahu 
KAWAUCHI, Sari N. 12237 Waiehu Kou IV, Maui 
   

ITEM D-4 EXHIBIT 
RATIFICATION OF LOAN APPROVALS 

   
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

KOERTE, Ethel L. 11340 Kekaha, Kauai 
   

ITEM D-5 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF HOMESTEAD APPLICATION TRANSFERS / CANCELLATIONS 

APPLICANT AREA 
AIONA, Ashten A. Oahu IW Res 
FAUFATA, Janet S.P. Oahu IW Res 
FAUFATA, Janet S.P. Molokai IW Agr 
HOBBS, Roger K. Molokai IW Res to Oahu IW Res 
KAHAWAII, Hamby O. Hawaii IW Agr 
KAHUMOKU, Ariel Oahu IW Res 
KALAHIKI, George P. Hawaii IW Res 
KAUHANE, Lincoln Maui IW Agr to Maui IW Pas 
KELEKOLIO, Joshua S.K.  Molokai IW Res 
MACLOVES, Chase K. Oahu IW Res 
PAPAIA, Keone K. Oahu IW Res 
POMAIKAI, Ember L.A.  Oahu IW Res 
SCHUTTE, William P. Oahu IW Res 
YOUNG, Wendell B.K. Hawaii IW Res 
  
                                    * IW = Islandwide 

 
ITEM D-6 EXHIBIT 

COMMISSION DESIGNATION OF SUCCESSORS TO APPLICATION RIGHTS – PUBLIC 
NOTICE 2018, 2020 & 2021 

  
APPLICANT AREA 

IONA, Gary K. Oahu IW Res 
IONA, Gary K. Molokai IW Agr 
KAHUMOKU, Ariel Oahu IW Res 
KALAHIKI, George P. Hawaii IW Res 
KUAHIWINUI, Natasha W. Hawaii IW Pas 
KUAHIWINUI, Natasha W. Hawaii IW Res 
MAIOLA, Dionne L. Maui IW Agr 
PAIK, Kalei L.J. Oahu IW Res 
PAIK, Kalei L.J. Maui IW Agr 
  
                                    * IW = Islandwide 



Page 8 of 9 
 

ITEM D-8 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL TO CERTIFY APPLICATIONS OF QUALIFIED APPLICANTS FOR THE MONTH OF 

January 2023 
  

APPLICANT AREA 
ABALOS, Michele M.M. Oahu IW Res 
ALCOS, Sherrie K. Hawaii IW Agr 
ALCOS, Sherrie K. Oahu IW Res 
CHEE, Sye L.K.N. Kauai IW Agr 
CHEE, Sye L.K.N. Kauai IW Res 
CUMMINGS, Aaron J. Kauai IW Agr 
CUMMINGS, Aaron J. Kauai IW Res 
FRAGAS, Lisa A. Oahu IW Res 
HOLBRON, Ashley Mari K. Oahu IW Res 
KAHOOILIHALA, Dinah K. Oahu IW Res 
KANEAO, Anthony A. Hawaii IW Agr 
KANEAO, Anthony A. Oahu IW Res 
KUKAHIKO, Ian M.A. Oahu IW Agr 
KUKAHIKO, Ian M.A. Oahu IW Res 
LIKE, Eldred K. Oahu IW Res 
MAHI-SEFO, Stacey K. Oahu IW Res 
MAHI-SEFO, Stacey K. Hawaii IW Agr 
PANUI, Lance S.K. Oahu IW Res 
PAYAPAYA, Brian J.K. Hawaii IW Res 
REA, Marietta M. Panaewa Area / Hawaii IW Agr 
RICHARD, Scott J.K. Hawaii IW Res 
SALINAS, Kuulei Puakalehua L. Hawaii IW Agr 
WALTJEN, Ernest Hawaii IW Res 
WALTJEN, Ernest Hawaii IW Agr 
  
                                    * IW = Islandwide 

ITEM D-9 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 

 
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

BATALONA, Eulalia K. 5206 Nanakuli, Oahu 
CAPELL, Bernadine U. 6488 Anahola, Kauai 
CARVEIRO, Bessie P. 6488 Anahola, Kauai 
KAHIAMOE, Cornelius A. 8508 PKE, Oahu 
KALANI, Lindsay W.A.K.C. 8184 Nanakuli, Oahu 
LOUGHMILLER, Marie D.U. 7662 Waiohuli, Maui 
MATSUSHIMA, Katherine K. 3061 Anahola, Kauai 
POE, Lorna L. 9908 Hanapepe, Kauai 
SINCLAIR, Deborah M. 5419 Paukukalo, Maui 
SPEED, Vanessa N. 10099 Waiehu Kou III, Maui 
SPENCER, Shawndy K. 561 Nanakuli, Oahu 
SWABA, Kristie P.K. 490 Hoolehua, Molokai 



Page 9 of 9 
 

SWABA, Kristie P.K. 490 Hoolehua, Molokai 
SYLVA, Bernadine K.P. 2905 Kuhio Village, Hawaii 
WELLER, James F., Jr., 3291 Kuhio Village, Hawaii 
KAILIHIWA, Solomon H., Jr. 10440 Waiohuli, Maui 

 
ITEM D-10 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
KAHALEAUKI, Charles A., Jr. 10118 Waiohuli, Maui 
LOUGHMILLER, Marie D.U. 7662 Waiohuli, Maui 
MATSUSHIMA, Katherine K. 3061 Anahola, Kauai 
SPEED, Vanessa N. 10099 Waiehu Kou, III, Maui 
SWABA, Kristie P.K. 490 Hoolehua, Molokai 
SWABA, Kristie P.K. 490 Hoolehua, Molokai 
WELLER, James F., Jr. 3291 Kuhio Village, Hawaii 

 
 
 

ITEM D-11 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL TO ISSUE A NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE FOR ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC 

SYSTEMS FOR CERTAIN LESSEES 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
ABRIGO, Lehuanani K.F. 9740 Moluohai, Oahu 
AKAO, Richard H. 9362 Kaniohale, Hawaii 
HALEAMAU, Jaylyn L. 4018 Waiakea, Hawaii 
HANOHANO, Donna Rae K. 7541 Waiohuli, Maui 
HANSON, Natalie K. 6336 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
JOSE, Gilbert K. 5259 Waianae, Oahu 
LOKETI, Lisa L. 10160 Anahola, Kauai 
PALAKIKO, Thia K. 4478 Waianae, Oahu 
RESPICIO, Florence A. 4714 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
SAIKI, Enid M. 6342 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
SCHUTTE, William P. 5357 Waianae, Oahu 
SUGAI, Melissia Mae A. 8666 Anahola, Kauai 
TAA, Todd K. 9609 Kalawahine, Oahu 

 
 
 



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2023 

C-ITEMS

OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN 



ITEM C-1

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

February 21, 2023 

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

THROUGH:   Paula Aila, Acting Administrator, 
Contact & Awards Division 

FROM: Michelle Hitzeman, HALE Manager /Project Lead 
Moana Freitas, Case Management Specialist 
Kaila Macaraeg, Case Management Specialist 
Contact & Awards Division 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Lease Award 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 

Approve the awards of Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Residence Lot Leases to the 
applicants listed below for ninety-nine (99) years, subject to the purchase of the existing 
improvements on the lot by way of a loan or cash. 

DISCUSSION 

Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai Subdivision Phase II – Residential Vacant Lots – Anahola, Kauai 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 

THOMAS NIZO      05/15/1990             30    (4) 4-8-022-119      12992 

HENRY LONOKALANIKAI SMITH 

    04/09/1991 21 (4) 4-8-022-110    12995 

HARRY K KANOHO     11/13/1987 13 (4) 4-8-022-102       12996 

LUELLA H LEMN      10/21/1988 9 (4) 4-8-022-098       12997 

JOWELL Y.L. ENRIQUE  03/05/1986             48 (4) 4-8-022-137       12998 

WILLIAM K BOYD      02/14/1986 42 (4) 4-8-022-131       12999 

CHARLEEN L CUMMINGS    02/24/1987 12 (4) 4-8-022-101       13000 

EMILY TUNG-LOONG 02/10/1986 49 (4) 4-8-022-138       13001 

ALBERT WONG JR      04/05/1983 4 (4) 4-8-022-093       13006 



ITEM C-1

Discovery Harbour – Residential Vacant Lot – Kau, Hawaii 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 

ROY A. LOANDO SR.     10/23/2003 610          (3) 9-4-017-083      13002 

Waianae Valley Subdivision – Preowned Home – Waianae, Oahu 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 

CHARLOTTE P KAHALEWAI    03/21/1974  21 (1) 8-5-036-021 13003   

Nanakuli Residence Lots 1st Series – Preowned Home – Nanakuli, Oahu 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 

SARAH L.N. NAONE                    02/27/1962          232A (1) 8-9-004-069 13004   

Waianae Kai Subdivision Unit 1 – Preowned Home – Waianae, Oahu 

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 

CHARLES K. LOPES III                01/17/1963          121 (1) 8-6-023-121 13005   



STATE OF HAWAII 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

February 21-22, 2023 

To: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

From: 

Subject: 

Lehua Kinilau-Cano, NAHASDA Government Relations Program Manager 

For Information Only - Legislative Updates 2023 

RECOMMENDATION/ ACTION: 

None; For information only. 

DISCUSSION 

DHHL LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS 

Legislative proposals approved by the Hawaiian Homes Commission were submitted for 
inclusion in the Administration's legislative package for the 2023 Regular Session. The 
following table reflects the Legislative Proposal, Description and Progress. 

Legislative Proposal Description Progress 

Proposal HHL-01(23) Allows DHHL to retain HB598 - Referred to JHA, FIN 
Independent Legal Counsel independent legal counsel SB 1014 - Referred to JDC/W AM 

Proposal HHL-02(23) Adds the Chairman of the 
Representation on CWRM HHC or designee to CWRM SB 1013 - Referred to WTL/HWN, W AM 

Proposal HHL-03(23) Exempts any homestead HB1055-Referred to JHA, FIN 
Tax Exemption development or housing SB1353 -HWN/HOU Passed with Am 

for DHHL from GET 

Proposal HHL-04(23) Allows DHHL to assume HB569 - Referred to WAL, JHA 
Historic Preservation review of historic prope1ties HB 1056 - WAL Passed with Am 
Reviews or burial sites for its lands SB 1354 - HWN/WTL deferred to 2/16/23 

Proposal HHL-05(23) Allows DHHL after HB568 - Referred to LGO, JHA 
Interim Admin Rules beneficiary consultation to HB 1057 - Referred to JHA 

issue interim rules SB 1355 - Referred to HWN/GVO, JDC 

Proposal HHL-06(23) Establishes a compliance HB 1139 - Referred to JHA, FIN 
Compliance and and enforcement program SB490 - Referred to JDC/W AM 
Enforcement on HHL within DHHL 

Proposal HHL-07(23) Allows an adopted HB 1058 - JHA Passed with Am 
Adoption individual to benefit both by SB 1356 - HWN Passed with Am 

natural and adoptive parent 

Proposal HHL-08(23) Makes permanent the HB1059-Referred to HSG, FIN 
Affordable Housing affordable housing credit SB1357 -HWN Passed with Am 
Credits program 

HHC ITEM NO. C-2 



Le2islative Proposal Description Pro2ress 

Proposal HHL-09(23) Makes permanent HBl 060 - Referred to EDN, JHA, FIN 
School Impact Fees exclusion of school impact SB1358 - Referred to HWN/EDU, 

fees JDC/WAM 

Proposal HHL-10(23) Allows for expenditure of HB1507 - Referred to JHA, FIN 
Act 279 (2022) Lapse Fix funds until June 30, 2025 SB1582 - Referred to W AM 

Both the House (HB567) and Senate (SB448) have a bill that combines the legislative 
proposals that are bolded in the table. HB567, HD 1 Passed JHA with Amendments and SB448 
Passed HWN/HOU with Amendments. 

THE STATE BUDGET 

The Governor's Biennium Budget request for FY 2024 and FY 2025 is reflected in 
HB300 and included $26,428,191 in general funds for FY 2024 and $26,796,100 for FY 2025 to 
cover the department's existing personnel, administrative and operating costs. The budget also 
included $20 million in CIP funding for each fiscal year for repairs and maintenance to 
infrastructure within DHHL subdivisions, Statewide. A chart highlighting the budget 
information is attached as Exhibit 'A'. 

HRl0 

The House adopted HRlO, which establishes a legislative working group to oversee 
DHHL's execution of funds appropriated pursuant to Act 279 (2022) to address the beneficiary 
waiting list. The resolution is attached as Exhibit 'B'. 

MEASURE TRACKING 

Staff has prepared a measure tracking spreadsheet listing all measures that impact the 
department in the Legislature. The current spreadsheet with the status of each measure as of 02-
13-23 is attached as Exhibit 'C'.

In addition to the bills and resolutions that specifically reference the department, staff 
monitors and prepares testimony as appropriate on measures that would impact Hawaiian Home 
lands or the department as a state agency. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ ACTION 

None; For information only. 

2 

HHC ITEM NO. C-2 





































STATE OF HAWAI'I 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

February 21-22, 2023 

To: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

From: Lehua Kinilau-Cano, NAHASDA Government Relations 
Program Manager 

Subject: For Information Only - Draft Native Hawaiian Housing 
Block Grant Annual Housing Plan 2023-2024 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

None. For information only. 

DISCUSSION 

Each year, as part of its compliance with 24 CFR Part 1006, 
Title VIII of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self
Determination Act (NAHASDA), the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands (DHHL) must file an approved annual housing plan (AHP) 
with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
As part of that process, the department releases the draft 
housing plan. 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Projected Expenditures by AHP Activity: 

Program # Program Name Budget 

AHP I 2023 Capital Improvement Projects 250,000 
AHP II Developer Financing 5,000,000 

AHP III Homeowner Financing 1,500,000 
AHP IV Home Assistance Program 600,000 
AHP V Waimanalo Kupuna Housing Rental Asst. 830,000 

AHP VI-A Rental Vouchers for Temporary Relocation 50,000 

AHP VI-B Emergency Rental and Utilities Assistance 600,000 

AHP VI-C DHHL Kupuna Rental Subsidy Program 2,500,000 
AHP VI-D Rental Vouchers for Units Dev. for DHHL 125,000 

AHP VII Housing Counseling 750,000 
AHP VIII Homeowner Assistance 600,000 

AHP IX Existing Potable Water Infrastructure 
Improvements 250,000 

AHP X Housing Conversion 2,000,000 

AHP XI Property Acquisition 5,000,000 

AHP XII Supportive Services 150,000 

AHP XIII Housing Management Services 100,000 

- 1 - ITEM NO. C-3 























































































































































HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2023 

D- ITEMS

HOMESTEAD SERVICES DIVISION 



























































































HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2023 

 

E- ITEMS

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 





















DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Land Development Division
Item E-2

For Information Only
February 21, 2023

East Kapolei
Project Updates



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

EAST KAPOLEI



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

404 single-family houses 
DHHL Offices
Community facilities
Fire Station
Commercial Parcels

KANEHILI



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAULUOKAHAI



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAULUOKAHAI INCREMENT II-B



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAULUOKAHAI INCREMENT II-C



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAULUOKAHAI “BACKBONE” INFRASTRUCTURE



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAULUOKAHAI FUTURE DEVELOPMENT



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Kaupea, Phase 2
Acquired from HHFDC December 2022
Land Cost $8,250,000
RFP for Development 1st Quarter 2023

Approximately 60 single-family lots
Cluster mailboxes
Traffic signal at Kapolei Parkway



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Mahalo

www.dhhl.hawaii.gov



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2023 

F- ITEMS

LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

































ITEM NO. F-3 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

February 21-22, 2023 

To: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

From: Peter “Kahana” Albinio, Jr., Acting Administrator 
Land Management Division 

Subject: Direct the Department to evaluate whether Act 279 (SLH 2022) funds should be 
used to pursue geothermal resource development as a means to generate revenue 
to reduce the homestead applicant waiting list 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission (“HHC”) Direct the Department to evaluate whether Act 
279 (SLH 2022) funds should be used to pursue geothermal resource development as a means to 
generate revenue to reduce the homestead applicant waiting list.  

This direction as authorized is intended to provide DHHL staff the opportunity to formulate a 
path that would justify the use of funds as appropriated pursuant to Act 279 of 2022.  The path as 
formulated shall be consistent with the following the criteria: 

(1) Hawaiian Homes Commission Permitted Interaction Group (“PIG”) be established as
determined by the Hawaiian Homes Commission;

(2) The process if and when any renewable energy solicitation is considered be strictly
guided by statutory requirements, more specifically, Hawaii Revised Statutes §171.95
and §171.95.3 respectively;

(3) Engage with DHHL Beneficiaries via the Beneficiary Consultation process; and

(4) The Hawaiian Homes Commission may set forth other criteria deemed prudent and
necessary.

BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this subject agenda item is to initiate dialogue amongst the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission on renewable energy opportunities that would consist of investigation, exploration 
and identification efforts of potential geothermal resources within home lands located more 
specifically on Hawaii Island.  Attached for reference purposes as Exhibit “A” is communication 
between Mr. Craig Iha, DHHL’s Supervising Deputy Attorney General of the State Attorney 
General Office and the Honorable State Senator Donovan Dela Cruz.      



ITEM NO. F-3 2 

The information obtained would then be analyzed and used as a guide to determine which sites 
might have potential and be best suited to further consider use of appropriated funds to pursue 
strategies to produce energy from DHHL’s potential geothermal resources.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Land Management Division respectfully request approval of the motion/action as stated. 



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Exhibit "A"Item No. F-3







AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Item No. F-4



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Item No. F-4



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Item No. F-4



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Item No. F-4



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Item No. F-4



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Item No. F-4



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2023 

G-ITEMS

PLANNING OFFICE 

































   ITEM NO. G-2 

STATE OF HAWAI‘I 
 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

February 21-22, 2023 
 
 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
THROUGH:  Andrew H. Choy, Planning Program Manager 
 
FROM: Nancy McPherson, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Accept the Beneficiary Consultation Report for a Land 

Use Amendment to the Kaua‘i Island Plan, Kukulu Kumuhana 
o Anahola’s (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project, Anahola, 
Kawaihau, Kaua‘i, TMK (4)4-8-003:019 (por.) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
 

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) accept this 
Beneficiary Consultation Report as the official public record of 
beneficiary input and feedback related to KKOA’s request to amend 
the Kaua‘i Island Plan to relocate ten acres out of a total of 
twenty four acres of Community Use to an area makai of the existing 
Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai Unit 6 subdivision in Anahola, Kawaihau, 
Kaua‘i, TMK (4) 4-4-8-003:019 (portion).  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 

In order to create consistency with a planning and project 
development effort being conducted by the Anahola beneficiary 
community, the land use plan for Anahola-Kamalomalo‘o (Anahola 
LUP) requires amending. The Land Use Amendment (LUA) needed 
would adjust the location of ten (10) out of a total of twenty-
four (24) acres of Community Use-designated land area to reflect 
the current location of residential homestead lots. See Exhibit 
B, Meeting Invitation & Maps. The need for the land use plan map 
change via an Island Plan Amendment is described in Chapters 2.4 
and 5.8 of the Kukulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola 
Master Plan and Environmental Assessment. For more detailed 
information on the Ulupono project, please see the Final EA and 
FONSI for KKOA Ulupono Anahola, which was approved by the HHC in 
October 2022 and can be downloaded here: 



- 2 -                        ITEM NO. G-2 

https://files.hawaii.gov/dbedt/erp/Doc_Library/2022-10-23-KA-
FEA-Ulupono-Anahola-Project.pdf 
  
 The DHHL recognizes that meaningful, timely, and informative 
beneficiary consultation is necessary for the successful 
formulation and implementation of its policies, programs, and 
projects.  In 2009, the HHC adopted a Beneficiary Consultation 
(BC) Policy (Policy).  The purpose of the Policy is to ensure that 
appropriate beneficiary consultation processes and activities are 
incorporated into DHHL’s planning and decision-making.  The Policy 
requires BC for four types of proposals:  1) Statewide Policy 
Issues, 2) Amendments to Land Use Designations, 3) Development of 
DHHL Plans and 4) Proposed long-term use of DHHL lands for non-
homesteading uses. 
 
 The land use request submitted by Kukulu Kumuhana o Anahola 
(KKOA) in January of 2019 to utilize DHHL lands for an agricultural 
garden and youth training center constitutes a long-term non-
homesteading use of DHHL lands. The project was not listed as a 
Priority Project in the 2010 Anahola Regional Plan; therefore, a 
beneficiary consultation meeting was required prior to HHC taking 
action on the request. At the time, the Planning Office recommended 
that KKOA locate the project in a 10 acre area makai of Pilipoli 
Road, believing that this was the location of the Community Use-
designated area, based on the 2004 Kaua‘i Island Plan’s Anahola-
Kamalomalo‘o Land Use Plan (Anahola LUP) map. 
 

A beneficiary consultation meeting on two Anahola land use 
requests, which included the Ulupono Anahola project, was held at 
the Anahola Clubhouse on August 7, 2019 and the Beneficiary 
Consultation Report for that meeting was accepted by the HHC on 
September 16, 2019. See Exhibit A, BC Report, Ulupono Anahola. 
Following approval, the HHC issued a Right of Entry (ROE) permit 
(ROE No. 698) for a two-year due diligence period prior to the 
issuance of a long-term lease agreement.  
 
 KKOA returned to the HHC in September 2021 requesting a 30-
year license. However, DHHL recommended that no permanent 
structures be built until an Environmental Assessment (EA) was 
completed. During the preparation of the EA, a Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS) mapping analysis was done by KKOA’s 
consultant, G70, and it was discovered that there was a discrepancy 
between what was shown as the location of the Community Use area 
in the DHHL Kaua‘i Island Plan Land Use Designations for Anahola 
(Anahola LUP) and the actual implementation of the development 
plan for Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai (Anahola Residential Lots Unit 6), 
namely that some of the area designated for Community Use in the 



- 3 -                        ITEM NO. G-2 

Island Plan had been developed for Residential homestead during 
development plan implementation. See Exhibit B. In other words, a 
portion of what the HHC previously set aside for Community Use was 
instead utilized for residential homesteading.  As a result, the 
intended space meant to provide opportunities for communal 
gatherings and/or programming no longer existed.  
 

As stated above, the Final EA was completed and a Finding of 
No Significant Impact (FONSI) was approved by the HHC in October 
of 2022. The EA discussed the issue of a discrepancy with the 
Anahola LUP, and that a LUA would be needed. At the October 
meeting, a LUA request was brought to the HHC, at which time the 
HHC requested that since the first BC on the land use request had 
not included a LUA, the item should be deferred until such time as 
a separate Beneficiary Consultation could be conducted just on the 
LUA, in keeping with DHHL’s BC Policy.        
  
Beneficiary Consultation Process 
 
 The proposed Land Use Amendment to the Anahola LUP of the 
Kaua‘i Island Plan went through the following steps to ensure that 
beneficiaries were informed about the proposed action and the 
opportunity to provide feedback on the LUA. 
 
 
STEP 1. THE PROPOSED ACTION IS DESCRIBED: 
 

The description of the overall KKOA Ulupono Anahola 
project had been shared with the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission on multiple occasions since 2019, using 
presentations that included various maps. The first 
Beneficiary Consultation on the land use request for the 
project was held on August 7, 2019. A project description 
was included in the invitation for that BC Meeting, with 
a location map. Subsequently, the invitation to the 
virtual BC on the proposed Land Use Designation 
Amendment in December 2022 included the Anahola LUP and 
existing and proposed LUD maps.     

 
 

STEP 2. BENEFICIARIES WERE NOTIFIED OF OPPORTUNITIES TO 
CONSULT  

 
In observance of health and safety precautions due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic as well as time constraints, the 
Department conducted a beneficiary consultation meeting 
with DHHL beneficiaries utilizing the Zoom virtual 



- 4 -                        ITEM NO. G-2 

meeting platform on December 15, 2022. Over 500 Kaua‘i 
applicants and Anahola residential lessees that reside 
on the island of Kaua‘i received invitations by mail, 
which included the Anahola LUP and existing and proposed 
LUD maps. See Exhibit B. 
  

STEP 3. PRESENTATION MATERIALS FOR ALL MEETINGS ARE AVAILABLE 
FOR FEEDBACK: 

 
DHHL created a webpage to disseminate information and 
provide online access to information related to this 
request, including: 

 
1. Weblink to the BC meeting recording 
2. Meeting notes from the December 15, 2022 BC meeting 

 
The webpage for this consultation meeting can be found 
here:  
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/kauai/kukulu-kumuhana-o-
anahola-ulupono-anahola-project/ 

 
 

STEP 4. COMMENTS ARE COMPILED INTO MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The following table and data below capture the level of 
participation in and engagement at the December 15, 2022 
consultation meeting and during the subsequent 30-day 
comment period: 
 

 
   Table 1: Summary of Beneficiary Participation 

Beneficiary 
Consultation 

Meeting 

Estimated 
Attendance 

No. Self-ID’d 
as DHHL 

Beneficiaries 

No. of 
Questions 
and/or 

Comments 

Dec. 15, 2022 20 9 15 

Written Comments 
Submitted during 

the 30-Day 
Comment Period 

-- -- 5 

TOTAL 20 9 20 

 
 

 



- 5 -                        ITEM NO. G-2 

To document BC attendance via a virtual online platform, 
attendees were asked to sign in to the “chat” feature on Zoom and 
self-identify whether they were a DHHL beneficiary.  However, all 
attendees may not have complied with the request to sign in, and 
over half did not self-identify their status as beneficiaries.  
Also, it’s possible that multiple people participated from a single 
computer or mobile device, therefore it can be difficult to 
determine the exact number of participants during the meeting. 

 
As reflected in Table 1, approximately 20 people attended the 

virtual meeting on December 15.  Close to half of the meeting 
participants self-identified as a DHHL beneficiary.  In addition 
to comments received during the beneficiary consultation meeting, 
5 additional comments were received from 5 individuals during the 
30-day comment period. DHHL received several questions, comments 
and/or opinions on subjects other than the LUA during the BC 
process. 

 

The following exhibits document BC participant mana‘o and 
include questions, suggestions and comments: 
 

1. Exhibit C – December 15, 2022 Meeting Notes 
 

2. Exhibit D – December 15, 2022 to January 16, 2023: 
Comments submitted during the 30-day Comment Period  

 
Exhibit E is comprised of the slides used during the 

presentation portion of the BC Meeting. 
  

 
Summary of Beneficiary Comments: 
 
 In summary, beneficiaries that participated in the 
consultation process were predominantly in favor of the Land Use 
Designation Amendment needed to facilitate Kukulu Kumuhana o 
Anahola’s (KKOA) utilization of DHHL lands for the Ulupono Anahola 
Project.  Several beneficiaries opposed the utilization of DHHL 
lands by KKOA for non-homesteading use because of concerns for 
beneficiaries still on the waiting list, and several other 
commenters expressed support for KKOA’s request but would also 
like to have DHHL provide answers to their questions and an updated 
Land Use Plan map for the area so that the land use designation 
adjustment and any impacts to the net amount of land available for 
the various uses could be better understood.  Comments are 
discussed further below. 
 
 



- 6 -                        ITEM NO. G-2 

Support for Granting the Land Use Designation Amendment Request 
 
 Beneficiaries that expressed support for KKOA’s utilization 
of DHHL lands for Community Use supported the land use amendment 
because of the positive impacts they have already seen in the form 
of cleanup of areas that were negatively impacting their community. 
KKOA has been a positive force in Anahola: 
 

“KKOA is an awesome organization, work done to clean is 
visible & they have impacted the community tremendously” 
 
“With all the riff raff that’s happening, the homelessness 
and everything, this 10 acres is a plus, especially for 
lessees who are currently living in this area” 
 
      

Opposition to Granting the Land Use Designation Amendment 
Request 
 
 Beneficiaries that are not supportive of KKOA’s Land Use 
Amendment request are opposed to the amendment because placing 
beneficiaries on the land and building homes should be a priority 
for the Department and the Trust. If changing the Land Use 
Designation for this project is going to keep beneficiaries from 
getting into homes or prolong their wait, it may not be the best 
idea to continue pursuing in that location, and a new location 
should be identified. Beneficiaries expressing opposition to the 
land use amendment felt that there is a lot of land up mauka, and 
alternatives should be explored that will allow KKOA to fully 
pursue their vision. Amending Residential Homestead land use 
designations should be avoided. 
 

“I’m a beneficiary, I’m a lessee, I have family that are 
on the waitlist. There are many people on the waitlist 
waiting for homes…” 
 
“It feels like the vision is so much bigger than what 
this 10-acre parcel is going to allow them”       

 
 
Beneficiary Comments, Questions and Requests 
 

 Update Anahola Land Use Plan Map in the Kaua‘i Island Plan 
– Beneficiaries would like to see DHHL update the Anahola 
LUP to reflect all the changes that have happened, so that 
it more accurately reflects reality and beneficiaries can 
better understand what areas are available for various uses. 



- 7 -                        ITEM NO. G-2 

 Identify how many residential lots could be created on the 
ten acres to be amended, how many lots will be created in 
Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai at buildout in what timeframe, and any 
constraints, like water availability. Also, provide an 
estimate of how many residential lots could be put on the 
land used by KIUC for the Solar Farm.   

 Seek Potential Alternatives for the Proposed Project – if 
this amendment will result in the loss of residential 
homestead area, then suitable alternative locations should 
be identified by DHHL, and relocation of the project 
facilitated. 

 Continue to Gather Community and Beneficiary Feedback in 
Anahola – KKOA is encouraged to continue to meet with the 
homestead community, hold discussions and receive feedback 
from residents, beneficiaries, and kupuna and on what they 
would envision for this property. 

 Work with the community to re-evaluate use of the Special 
District area between the residential homesteads and the 
County of Kaua‘i bike path route from Kealia to Anahola –
this can be included as part of the Makai Management Plan 
Priority Project in the Anahola Regional Plan (2022).   
     

 
Next Steps 
 

 Planning Office works on responses to beneficiary comments, 
questions and requests received during Beneficiary 
Consultation.  

 HHC reviews and decides on Land Use Amendment request 
(March 2023) 

 Assuming HHC approval on the Land Use Amendment request, 
KKOA returns to HHC with update on project and compliance 
with conditions of 5-year license and requests a long-term 
disposition. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 

Staff respectfully requests that the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission approves the recommended motion to accept the 
Beneficiary Consultation Report, as stated. 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A



- 2 - ITEM NO. G-2 

2016, the DHHL Planning Office and Land Management Division staff 

met over a series of meetings to make improvements to the process 

and to guide staff on when and how to process unsolicited 

requests.  As a result, many non-profits, including DHHL 

community associations, submitted proposals to DHHL addressing 

the criteria outlined in Exhibit ‘A’, “Information That May Be 

Needed To Evaluate Non-Revenue Generating Land Use Requests.” 

However, without a process in place, many proposals were not 

acted upon in a timely manner. 

In March 2019, the Planning Office presented a revised 

application process for unsolicited requests for the use of 

Hawaiian Home Lands from non-profit organizations. See Table 1, 

“Revised Land Use Request Process,” below.  The new application 

incorporated most of the criteria that were identified in April 

2016.  The purpose of the application is to: 

(1) Create a fair and transparent internal process for

processing requests for use of Hawaiian Home Lands for

eleemosynary (charitable) purposes; and

(2) Ensure that the proposed use of Hawaiian Home Lands does

not significantly impact DHHL’s ability to provide

programs and services to current and future

beneficiaries.

Table 1  Revised Land Use Request Process 

The new application process provides clear steps and a general 

timeframe for completion of each step. However, it should be 

noted that one shortcoming of the new process is a lack of 

ability to measure an applicant’s current capacity as well as 

growth of capacity needed over time to successfully implement the 

proposed project. 

EXHIBIT A



- 3 - ITEM NO. G-2 

As part of the new application process, one action-step that 

is required on the part of DHHL is to conduct a Beneficiary 

Consultation Meeting regarding the proposed project in instances 

where the project was not identified as a priority project in a 

DHHL Regional Plan.   

These two proposed projects on Kaua‘i were not reflected in 

the Anahola Regional Plan Priority Projects, thus each of the 

projects required Beneficiary Consultation.   The consultation 

requirement is consistent with the DHHL Beneficiary Consultation 

Policy that was adopted by the HHC in 2009, which states that 

prior to any approval for a long-term lease or license, 

beneficiaries that may be affected by the proposed use of 

Hawaiian Home Lands must be consulted to collect their input and 

feedback. 

With the new application process in place, and in light of 

multiple land use requests that were submitted by homestead 

associations but were never acted upon, the Planning Office 

committed to transfer the application information to the new 

application process and to schedule and conduct the requisite 

Beneficiary Consultation meetings so that a decision can be 

rendered on the outstanding land use requests.   

Anahola Land Use Requests 

The Kalalea Anehola Farmers’ Hui (KAF HUI) and the Pi‘ilani 

Mai Ke Kai Community Association in partnership with Kukulu 

Kumuhana o Anahola (KKOA) have requested the use of Hawaiian Home 

Lands for non-homesteading purposes.  A summary description of 

each request is presented in Table 2, “Summary Descriptions of 

Land Use Requests from Beneficiary Organizations in Anahola,” 

below.  The parcel locations of the lands requested are presented 

in Figure 1, “Anahola Land Use Requests.” 

Table 2:  Summary Descriptions of Land Use Requests from 

Beneficiary Organizations in Anahola 

Hawaiian 
Homestead 
Association 

Summary Project Description 
Land 

Disposition 
Requested 

Parcel No. 
and Acreage 
Requested 

Kalalea Anehola  Convert the existing Right‐of‐Entry permit to a  34‐year  TMK (4)4‐8‐

EXHIBIT A



- 4 - ITEM NO. G-2 

Farmer’s Hui (KAF 
HUI) 

long‐term General Lease for continued use as 
Anahola Farmer’s Market to:  1) provide a 
permanent location for the Anahola Farmer’s 
Market for Agricultural Lessees to market and sell 
their crops and value‐added products; 2) increase 
the days of operation; and 3) utilize the site as a 
Cultural Learning Center promoting farm education 
and healthy food services, including a food bank, an 
open pavilion and a certified kitchen. 

General Lease   005:026 

0.9 acre 

Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai 
Community 
Association, in 
partnership with 
Kukulu Kumuhana O 
Anahola (KKOA) 

To develop Ulupono Anahola‐‐ an agricultural and 
youth training center that includes a 10‐acre 
Community Garden, Youth Marae (clubhouse), 
pavilion, office, and kitchen.  Long‐term plans 
include land stewardship, deterrence of dumping, a 
nursery, orchard, processing facility and a 
permanent location for Movie Nite. 

30‐year 
General Lease 

TMK (4)4‐8‐
003:019 
(portion) 

30 acres 

Beneficiary Consultation Meeting 

Since the proposed projects are not Priority Projects in the 

current Anahola Regional Plan, the Planning Office is required to 

conduct a Beneficiary Consultation meeting on the land use 

requests.  In order to make the most efficient use of DHHL 

resources, land use requests in the same general geographic area 

EXHIBIT A



- 5 - ITEM NO. G-2 

may be grouped and discussed during the same meeting. The main 

consideration in consultation is the determination of who should 

be consulted.  In this case, the Planning Office determined that 

all beneficiaries (lessees and applicants) residing in Anahola 

(i.e., with the Anahola zipcode of 96703) should be consulted.  

Four hundred forty-nine (449) invitation letters (Exhibit ‘B’) 

were mailed out two weeks prior to the meeting date. 

On Wednesday, August 7, 2019, the Planning Office conducted 

a Beneficiary Consultation meeting on the two land use requests 

(LUR’s) at the Anahola Clubhouse from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  A 

total of 50 people signed in at the registration table (Exhibit 

‘C’, “Sign-in Sheets”), but a headcount indicated that there were 

at least 60 people in attendance.  Chairman William Aila, Jr., 

Kaua‘i Hawaiian Homes Commissioner, Dennis Neves, and the Kaua‘i 

District Office Manager, Erna Kamibayashi were in attendance.  

Staff from the Land Management Division and the Planning Office 

were also present.  Nancy McPherson, the Kaua‘i Liaison from the 

Planning Office, provided a short introduction to the meeting. 

Each association was given 20 minutes to present background 

information about their association and their project proposal to 

utilize Hawaiian Home Lands (Exhibit ‘D’, “Powerpoint Slides”).  

Following each presentation, DHHL facilitated a 15-minute 

question and comment session. Notes on the presentations as well 

as verbatim questions, answers and comments from the discussion 

may be found in Exhibit ‘E’, “Presentation Notes and Questions/ 

Comments.”   

In addition to verbal questions and comments received at the 

meeting, a total of five (5) written comments were received at 

the meeting (Exhibit ‘F’).  In addition to the August 7, 2019 

meeting, beneficiaries were given the opportunity to provide 

comments to DHHL over the course of a 30-day comment period from 

August 7, 2019 to September 6, 2019.  A total of two (2) written 

comments were received via email and postal mail during the 30-

day comment period (Exhibit ‘G’).  The following table summarizes 

all comments received for each proposed project, along with DHHL 

and/or requestor responses. 

Consultation Findings and Analysis  

Table 3 below summarizes information DHHL received from all 

sources including: 

 Questions and coments made during the Consultation

Meeting

EXHIBIT A



- 6 - ITEM NO. G-2 

 Comments received during the 30-day comment period,

August 7, 2019 to September 6, 2019

Table 3  Summary of Comments re: Anahola Land Use Requests 

Topic Comments/Questions Response/Recommendation

“Ulupono Anahola” – PMKK Community Association & KKOA 

Long-term 

Sustainability 

How are you planning 

for future 

generations? 

Training the youth to be 

farmers and food self-

sufficient successors 

Business Plan How will you pay for 

utilities, 

maintenance, 

employees, equipment 

etc.? 

Business Plan to be 

developed during due 

diligence phase & shared 

with community 

Where will funding 

come from to pay 

teachers? 

Business Plan to be 

developed during due 

diligence phase & shared 

with community 

Who will be 

receiving any 

profits? 

Business Plan to be 

developed during due 

diligence phase & shared 

with community 

Need More 

Project Details 

What is this project 

going to look like?  

Site Plan to be refined, 

Planning Office (PO) to 

provide some Technical 

Assistance (TA) 

Detailed Site 

Plan 

On what part of the 

parcel are you doing 

what? 

Site Plan to be refined, 

Planning Office (PO) to 

provide some Technical 

Assistance (TA) 

Proximity to 

residential 

homesteads 

Where will the 

project be located 

in terms of existing 

residential lots? 

Makai of last row of 

houses. PO will work 

with KKOA to avoid any 

impacts to neighboring 

residential lots.  

Ensuring 

Beneficiary 

Participation 

Will beneficiaries 

be doing the 

gardening? 

Project is designed for 

Anahola youth in 

partnership with 

Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai 

Community Association.  

I support it if the 

site will be used by 

beneficiaries & 

prioritize Anahola 

residents. 

Project is designed for 

Anahola youth in 

partnership with 

Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai 

Community Association. 

Who will be allowed 

to use the Youth 

Center? 

Operational plan and 

programming concepts to 

be developed during due 

diligence phase. 

EXHIBIT A



- 7 - ITEM NO. G-2 

Topic Comments/Questions Response/Recommendation

Liability Who will assume 

liability? 

ROE Holder/Licensee must 

maintain liability 

insurance of $1 million 

DCC&R’s Do the Homeowner’s 

Association Rules 

apply to this site? 

The site was identified 

for community use and 

was not included in the 

DCC&R’s for PMKK 

Homeless in 

coastal area 

Need to remove 

homeless individuals 

living makai of 

Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai, 

near the lighthouse 

DHHL in partnership with 

County of Kaua’i and 

State DOT-Highways is 

working to clear out 

homeless encampments in 

the unencumbered lands 

“Anahola Farmers Market” – Kalalea Anehola Farmer’s Hui (KAF 

HUI) 

Ensuring 

Beneficiary 

Participation 

I support it if the 

site will be used by 

beneficiaries & 

prioritize Anahola 

residents. 

Proposed training 

program will be designed 

to increase # of Anahola 

Ag Lessees farming and 

vending at Market. 

Impacts to 

neighbors 

Concerns: Safety, 

traffic, congestion, 

trespassing, 

urinating/defecating 

in public, loose 

animals defecating 

and trespassing  

KAF HUI will be advised 

that they need to 

address these impacts to 

the neighborhood, and 

that DHHL will be 

monitoring progress in 

alleviating concerns 

Long term lease 34-year lease is not

acceptable.

LMD & PO not supporting 

a long-term lease at 

this time. 

Expanding 

activities/uses 

and # of days 

operating 

Adding additional 

days and uses will 

just aggravate these 

problems 

DHHL will monitor 

operations more closely 

and evaluate regularly 

Both Projects 

In support of 

both projects 

Beautiful vision, 

KKOA has a good 

reputation in the 

community.  

DHHL supports 

beneficiary-serving 

organizations that 

enhance well-being and 

support agriculture 

Farmer’s Market has 

been a good addition 

to the community 

DHHL supports 

beneficiary-serving 

organizations that 

enhance well-being and 

support agriculture 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

DHHL Staff respectfully requests approval of the motion as 

recommended.  
EXHIBIT A



- 8 - ITEM NO. G-2 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT ‘A’: Information That May Be Needed To Evaluate 

Non-Revenue Generating Land Use Requests 

EXHIBIT ‘B’: Invitation Letters 

EXHIBIT ‘C’: Sign-in Sheets 

EXHIBIT ‘D’: Powerpoint Slides 

EXHIBIT ‘E’: Presentation Notes and Questions/Comments 

EXHIBIT ‘F’: Written Comments from Meeting 

EXHIBIT ‘G’: Writen Comments During Comment Period 

EXHIBIT A



ITEM G-2 
EXHIBIT B



ITEM G-2 
EXHIBIT B



                          - 3 –                   ITEM NO. G-2 

Homes community with an all-Native Hawaiian Board of Directors, 
currently has a five (5) year license for the use of ten (10) 
acres to develop the Ulupono Anahola project. This Land Use 
Amendment seeks only to amend the location of the Community Use 
Land Use Designation (LUD) and does not increase the total area 
within the homestead allocated to that LUD. See Figure 1, 
Anahola Land Use Designations, below. 

Figure 1 Anahola Land Use Designations ITEM G-2 
EXHIBIT B



                          - 5 –                   ITEM NO. G-2 

  Figure 2 DHHL Anahola Land Use ITEM G-2 
EXHIBIT B



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

1 

Meeting Purpose 
The purpose of the consultation meeting is to give beneficiaries (Anahola lessees and Kaua‘i applicants who 
reside on Kaua‘i) the opportunity to get information, ask questions, and comment on a proposed Amendment 
to the DHHL Kauaʻi Island Plan’s Anahola Land Use Plan. The Island Plan Amendment is needed to adjust the 
location of ten acres of Community Use land makai of the residential homestead of Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai (PMKK) 
in order to make the Community Use of the Kūkulu Kumuhana o Anahola’s (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project 
consistent with the Kauaʻi Island Plan.  

Participants 
● Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL)

○ Andrew Choy, Planning Program Manager
○ Nancy McPherson, Planner

● Presenter
○ Rachelle (Rae) Nam, KKOA Executive Director and Applicant on waitlist

● Consultant for KKOA
○ Kawika McKeague, G70

● Beneficiaries & Participants
1. Brian Kona Russell, Applicant
2. Kahanu Smith, Applicant
3. Kuʻuleialoha (Kuʻulei) Punua, Applicant
4. Lono Aki, Applicant
5. Lorilani Keohokālole, Applicant
6. Ashley Alapai, Anahola Lessee
7. Chanel Josiah, Lessee
8. Commissioner Dennis L. Neves, Lessee
9. Elizabeth (Pua) Prem, PMKK Lessee
10. JoRina Holland, PMKK
11. Destiny Smith, PMKK Phase 2
12. and Henry Smith, PMKK Phase 2
13. HenrieRose Kaui
14. Ipo Torio Kauhane
15. Joseph Janicki Sr.
16. Justin Shanks
17. Kalani
18. Maile Cummings
19. Melissia
20. Stephenie Silva

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

2 

Synthesis 

Presentation by Kūkulu Kumuhana o Anahola (KKOA) for Proposed Amendment to 
Land Use Designation  
KKOA is compelled and committed to providing safe places and spaces specifically to deter suicide. Part of 
KKOA’s mission and vision is grounded by Anahola residents. KKOA pursues its mission and vision by building 
life skills to strengthen people’s identities through Hawaiian values and empower individuals to successfully 
manage their future through establishing a healthy, sustainable, and thriving Hawaiian community. KKOA 
strives to see youth learning and provides opportunities for youth to gain skills, using the potential property to 
educate and serve youth. The hope is that the property will provide food for the community and lower 
dependence on outside food sources.  

Community Member Questions & Answers by DHHL and KKOA 

● Q: Is the project site limited to 10 acres?
○ Yes, KKOA’s proposed Ulupono Anahola Project is 10 acres.

● Q: Will the number of available residential lots be impacted by the proposed KKOA Ulupono
Anahola Project?

○ DHHL would only be redesignating and redistributing the existing 10 acres of community use
designation. Land Use Maps were not updated when the residential lots for Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai
subdivision in the Anahola Development Plan were created. This created a situation where
Community Use Designated land was in the middle of a homestead area.

○ The Department put homes in the area that was designated for community use. As a result of
this DHHL suggests that it may make sense to look at another community space in this
particular region.

● Q: How long will it take to make amendments or updates to the Land Use Designations?
○ DHHL intends to take the comments we heard tonight to the Commission. Shortly thereafter,

DHHL will take the Land Use Amendment proposal to the Commission. DHHL is looking at
either January or February to take the Consultation Report to the Commission and either
February or March for the Commission to consider amending the Community Land Use
Designation in the Kauaʻi Island Plan.

● Q: When will DHHL update the entire Kauaʻi Island Plan?
○ If there is a desire to amend the entire Island Plan, DHHL would need to add it into their budget,

receive a sufficient budget, and request approval of the budget to amend the entire Island Plan.
Island Plans must be updated from the oldest plan, currently the oldest one is Hawaiʻi Island
Plan, adopted by the Commission in 2002.

● Q: How long of a license will KKOA have for this project?
○ The initial disposition that the Commission gave to KKOA for due diligence was for 5 years.

KKOA shared that even though they are seeking a longer-term license from DHHL, the current
license that DHHL has agreed upon is for 5 years. KKOA hopes that this license will be honored
if the amendment to the Land Use Designation is approved.

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

3 

● Q: How many residential lots could fit in a 10-acre area?
○ Typically, DHHL residential lots on neighbor islands have been about 7,500 square feet.

Calculations will need to be done to identify how many lots would fit on a 10-acre property.
● Q: Would Hawaiian Homes compensate the money and invested time by KKOA into the property

area if they were unable to move forward with this project?
○ DHHL will need to check KKOA’s current lease or license.

● Q: How many residential lots could be put on the land used by KIUC for the Solar Farm?
○ DHHL will need to check the current acreage amount for the solar farm.

● Q: How can beneficiaries and lessees support DHHL to update the Land Use Map?
○ If beneficiaries and lessees are in favor of the amendment shown in the meeting, they can share

manaʻo or feedback to DHHL and they will add it to their meeting report.
● Q: How can I pass my Hawaiian Homes lease to my son if I will not be building?

○ DHHL will refer this question to DHHL’s Homestead Services Division.

Community Member Concerns 
● Ensure Land Use Designations for Residential Homesteads are Protected -- and that building

beneficiary homes are a priority for the Department. If changing a Land Use Designation for this project
is going to keep beneficiaries from getting into homes or prolong their wait, it may not be the most ideal
to continue pursuing.

Suggestions from Community Members 
● Update Anahola Land Use Designation Map in the Kauaʻi Island Plan -- to keep beneficiaries,

residents, and community members up to date on the current breakdown of land designations in
Anahola and the current and future land uses.

● Seek Potential Alternatives for the Proposed Project -- if there are other community land
designations in Anahola that KKOA might consider for their project that will avoid amending residential
land use designations.

● Continue to Gather Community and Beneficiary Feedback in Anahola -- as KKOA hopes to hear
from Anahola residents, beneficiaries, and kupuna and receive feedback on what they would envision
for this property.

● Ongoing Support for KKOA’s Community Work to Move Forward -- as some have shared positive
remarks of KKOA’s organization, and have visibly seen the impact of their work, cleaning up areas in
Anahola that were impacting the community, and being active members in the community.

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

4 

Beneficiary Q&A and Manaʻo on Land Use Designation Amendment for 
KKOA Ulupono Anahola Project & Presentation  
From 38:15 - 1:19:05 of Recording  

Notes
● Andrew: I see a hand up from Commissioner Neves, would you like to start us off?
● Commissioner Neves: Yes, thank you Andrew

○ Thanks for the presentation
○ I’d just like to say that the reason this has come to this point

■ In our last Commission meeting, there was a proposal to move from one area to the 
other without this consultation

○ Just wanted to make it clear, I’m not against the project, I’ve never been
○ Matter of fact, if you look at the first picture of the project, I’m standing there helping get things 

done in 2017
■ I’ve worked the project for several years
■ And we still do work with KKOA

○ Wanted to make sure that those who are either on this call and those that are not
○ The two maps that were sent out with the Notice, are somewhat a little confusing

■ One shows Anahola Bay
● One map outlined in red

■ Another map that shows project site
○ So I’m assuming that we’re only talking about the project site, is that correct?

● Nancy: Yes
● Commissioner Neves: The 10-acre project site

○ Initially when KKOA came up with their proposal, they were looking at 30 acres
○ So is this going to limit the size of that project now
○ Because if it doesn't limit size of the project, it takes more residential area out
○ My responsibility is to ensure we put people in homes
○ Think the project is great, but our people need to voice their opinion
○ I’m only voicing my opinion and my concern about doing something that has infrastructure close 

enough to put extra homes in
○ Just wanted to make sure, this is a 10-acre site

■ This would limit the size of this project
■ Which if that’s the idea of moving it forward, thinks it’s really up to the beneficiaries to 

decide if they want to allow this to happen or have it moved
○ Know there has been a lot of money, lot of work, I understand
○ But the Department error in giving us the wrong information from the ROE and then when we 

got to the 5-year license
○ So I’m a little concerned, I’m only speaking for myself, I’m a beneficiary, I’m a lessee, I have 

family that are on the waitlist
■ There are many people on the waitlist waiting for homes
■ Just wanted to make sure I’m responsible, and my fiduciary responsibility is for all 

beneficiaries, all of the beneficiaries
ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



5 

12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

■ That’s my kuleana
■ Hope someone else has something to say, thank you

13-Nancy: Can I respond
14-Commissioner Neves: Sure, go ahead
15-Nancy: As I stated, I think on this slide

○ The thing about it, the way we handle our Land Use Plans and our maps isn't as dynamic as 
we’d like it to be

○ So like I said, when we did the Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai subdivision Anahola residential lots 
Development Plan, the land use map should’ve been updated at that point but it wasn’t

○ So what it did, it created a situation where we have community use designated in the middle of 
a homestead area

○ What we’re doing is not really redesignating 10 acres, we’re actually redistributing existing 
community use designation into 2 separate areas

16-Commissioner Neves: Nancy I understand that
○ The priority is putting Hawaiians in homes
○ Community use is like a 2nd to getting someone in a home
○ I understand the 20,000 ft. level this was the plan and we should have adjusted it
○ Now we have infrastructure in an area that should be residential
○ Not my decision, I bring it to the beneficiaries to speak on this subject, they need to decide

17-Andrew: Thank for your two comments
○ Let’s go to Kuʻulei, you have your hand up

18-Kuʻulei: As a beneficiary myself, and as an applicant waiting on the list
○ I totally understand what Commissioner Neves is saying
○ However, if you look at this map that is being shown now
○ In regards to the location, more for everyone who hasn’t been following KKOA’s journey

■ My understanding is that the 20 acres, purple color is now being moved to where we 
were directed to establish Ulupono Anahola as the quote unquote community lease

○ Initially when KKOA was directed to this property that we are now on and have been working on 
since 2019

■ The application that both Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai, the Board of Directors, and the members
■ We also had a meeting with the members of Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai, because that is what 

DHHL directed us to do
● To work with one of the already established residential groups
● We went to Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai
● They already had an interest in a type of community garden
● We had an agreement that we will apply

○ We applied for 30 acres to do not only what you see on the map
■ Also an orchard, so there would be food for the community
■ That is the future
■ When we went for the 30 acres initially in 2019

● The commissioners told us to start with 10 acres
● We started with the 10 acres
● The 30 acres has always been the vision

○ I would like to put it on the record

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

6 

■ I think that a lot of people that are on the call and in this beneficiary consultation meeting
may not know a little bit of the background of how we got to this place now

■ We are really wanting to get everybody's feedback because it is important for us as well
to hear from you

○ As a beneficiary myself who has been on the waiting list for over 40 years
■ I totally understand Commissioner Neves’s concerns
■ Because I would also like to have that residential place myself
■ The other thing, it’s plenty land, this is just the portion that is… (cut out)

○ Just to end my input
■ This has been managed now, cleaned up now
■ Prior to that, it was quite a threat to the community
■ So I just wanted to leave everybody with that information as well

○ Thank you so much and thank you for the meeting
● Andrew: Mahalo Kuʻulei

○ Again the question or the main topic of this conversation tonight
○ Proposed land use amendment to amend the Kauaʻi Island Plan

■ To redesignate the 10-acre property to Community Use from Residential use
■ Currently the previous Island Plan had 26 acres of Community Use
■ In this area, a lot of this has been developed for residential use already

○ The proposal would help provide more community space for the purposes that KKOA went over
tonight

○ So if there are other questions on this or comments, now is the time
○ Lorilani, please unmute yourself

● Lorilani: Aloha mai kākou, I am Lorilani Keohokālole
○ My question has to do opposing or supporting
○ If we write it in the chat, it does not show up in recording, would that be sufficient for this action

● Andrew: That’s a good question
○ After this meeting, we will take down the meeting notes, the meeting notes will include both the

comments that are said verbally as well as the chat
○ If you would like to do both, that’s fine

● Lorilani: Mahalo
● Andrew: Other questions or comments on the proposed land use amendment?

○ Commissioner Neves
● Commissioner Neves: Andrew, I just want to thank you guys for having this opportunity for the

beneficiaries to view and voice their opinion
○ I think all of those involved including KKOA hope it can move forward as soon as possible,

thank you
● Andrew: Mahalo commissioner, any other comments or questions?

○ Want to make sure folks understand what the proposal is
○ It is to change the yellow to blue essentially
○ Changing this area to community use
○ JoRina, please unmute

● JoRina: Hi, I’m JoRina. I wanted to know, after this, when will they update the plans, correct the
community use areas?

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

7 

● Andrew: Let me go to that slide, good question
○ While I go to that slide, what we intend to do is take the comments we hear tonight to the

Commission, so they have a record of the comments that were made
○ And then shortly thereafter, we will take this land use amendment proposal to the Commission
○ Sorry, I can't get to the slide
○ We’re looking at either January or February to take the Consultation Report to the Commission
○ And either February or March for the Commission to consider amending the Island Plan to

Community Use
○ Did I answer your question?

● JoRina: Kind of
○ Are they going to update the entire Island Plan use that is current like the Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai

area?
● Andrew: So you are asking when is the Department going to amend the entire Island Plan, is that your

question?
● JoRina: Yes, just to correct not just this area that we’re talking about tonight

○ But the other parts of Anahola
● Andrew: I guess, I don't have an answer for you

○ Because currently it is something that we would have to put in our budget
○ And request approval of the budget to amend the entire Island Plan
○ Just to let you know, we have to update our island plans from oldest, oldest one is Hawaiʻi

Island Plan, it was adopted by the Commission in 2002, so we’d have to start with that one first
■ Then we’ll proceed to the subsequent Island Plans

○ The timing is also a matter of getting sufficient budget to do the Island Plan update
● Nancy: But I do think it’s possible that we could update the map and do an addendum to the existing

Island Plan
● Andrew: Yes, just for this amendment though, not a comprehensive amendment that JoRina was

asking about
○ Really good question, nothing but good questions and comments so far
○ Other questions or comments on the proposed land use amendment

● Ipo: Sorry I am not sure how to raise my hand
● Andrew: Go ahead
● Ipo: Aloha, my name is Ipo Torio-Kauhane

○ I am a long-time resident of Anahola
○ I am the founder of Kanuikapono School
○ I am a big fan of KKOA

■ Love the vision and mission
■ So appreciate Aunty Rae, Aunty Kuʻulei, and Aunty Manulele, by brother Kapule and

Lorilani and all of those who support a much needed program
○ My frustration right now is it feels like weʻre going backwards again
○ I was there, I remember when they were preparing all of this, bringing in all of the infrastructure,

that was 10 years ago
○ So it took this long to get here
○ And I have to echo, as much as I do love Aunty Rae and Aunty Kuʻulei
○ I do have to echo what Commissioner Neves has said

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

8 

■ I do have a concern with changing the designation
■ And I am wondering how that is going to affect the rollout and the timeline

● 40 years is long enough
● If changing the designation is going to keep another 25 from getting into homes

and they’re going to have to wait longer, then it doesn't belong there, that project
doesn't belong there

● There is so much land up mauka
● It feels like the vision is so much bigger than what this 10-acre parcel is going to

allow them
○ I’m not sure what other options or alternatives is available for this project

■ Because I want to support this project
■ It’s just really hard to see this Land Use Designation now when we’re so close to rolling

out another bunch of lots for families to get on
○ Deep love and respect for KKOA and those who work so hard
○ Apologize if my manaʻo hurts or offends anyone
○ I just feel compelled to advocate for the hundreds of families that are still waiting
○ Mahalo to all of you and the opportunity to share this manaʻo, ‘oia nō

● Andrew: Mahalo, Ipo, good manaʻo
○ Other comments, questions on the land use amendment?
○ Kuʻulei you can unmute yourself

● Kuʻulei: Thank you for this discussion here
○ Really happy that we can talk about this
○ So, in regards to this designated land

■ Was this designated land that now has become for KKOA, a challenge
■ A challenge because we put not just us, there's been a lot of equity put into this property
■ If this property needed to go somewhere else, would Hawaiian Homes compensate all of

that almost close to $1M that Rae had mentioned earlier, if we had to move
○ That’s a question
○ And how many house lots is in this 10 acres

● Andrew: So the first question is whether or not the Department would compensate KKOA for the work
that you put in

○ I don't know the answer to that, I would probably have to check the lease or license you folks
have

○ Your second question, how many house lots would go into the 10 acres
■ Typically our lots on the neighbor islands have been about 7,500 square feet
■ So we’d have to do the calculations to see how many lots would fit on a 10 acre property
■ Off the top of my head I can’t tell you
■ I just want to point out that unfortunately the Department put homes in the area that was

designated for community use
■ This community use area was taken up by homes
■ What we’re proposing is that the because of that, it would make sense to look at another

community space in this particular region
● Nancy: Wanted to add that there is definitely infrastructure that can continue makai

○ Definitely land that is developable on the other side of the 10 acres

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

9 

○ When KKOA first came to us to discuss this and requested 30 acres
○ We said well all this land is designated for residential except for the community use acreage

■ Which we didn’t realize was in the wrong place
■ It’s really just a map adjustment
■ That’s why we weren’t doing the GIS level of analysis so the digital mapping, and that’s

what Group 70 did
■ And that’s when this mapping error became evident to us
■ So there is no net loss of residential homestead area
■ This is not going to slow down development of additional residential lots

○ One of our biggest constraints is water supply
■ So we’re going to have to make sure we can handle providing enough water and handle

the wastewater for additional residential homesteads
● Andrew: There’s a comment in the chat from… sorry if I mispronounce your name Melissia, KKOA is an

awesome organization, work to clean is visible and they have been active in the community
tremendously

○ Then I’ll go to JoRina, you have your hand up again
● JoRina: Yes, that’s why I was asking the question about redoing the map

○ Under the blue where it says community use, if you go out towards the edge, towards the
special district

■ That whole area is Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai, that’s Phase 3
■ And that’s all coming in after Phase 2 that’s supposed to be…
■ They just gave those lots out in June of this year
■ There are going into Phase 2, but that other blue portion which is a dark green, next to

the red, that whole area is PMKK Phase 3
■ And that road connects to Ehukai Road for Phase 3

○ And when you’re talking about water, that’s more houses, that’s supposed to be another 60
houses coming in

● Nancy: Yes, and they do have the water for that
● JoRina: Right, and so since we have not done as far as I was looking back on the website

○ Anahola doesn't have any more designation in this area besides PMKK
○ I don't see that this 10 acres, don't know about 30 acres

■ Don't see the 10 acres being poorly managed with this project
■ I see that it’s going to be manageable, and it is currently manageable for what is

happening right now with the land
■ With all the riff raff that’s happening, the homelessness and everything, this 10 acres is a

plus
■ Especially for lessees who are currently living in this area

○ I just really want this to be designated, the map to be updated to show us
○ Because we just did re-did the water tower on the agricultural site also

■ A more updated map would help tremendously, for everyone
● Andrew: Mahalo JoRina for that comment

○ Good comment
○ Let’s see, there is a couple comments in the chat from Kona

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

10 

■ He estimates that 10,000 square foot lot equals quarter acre approximate, 3-4 lots per
acre plus road, my guess we could put 22-30 residential lots on 10 acres

○ Kalani has a question
■ How many residential lots could be put on the land used by KIUC for the Solar Farm

○ Unfortunately, I don't know the answer to that question off of the top of my head I don't know the
acreage amount for the solar farm currently

■ That is something we can get back to you on
■ We’ll probably put it in the meeting notes
■ Sorry we can't answer it

● Nancy: If you look at the Land Use Designation map there
○ Mauka of the highway, there is a community commercial area that is the hatched red and white

candy cane stripe
○ I believe some of the solar farm has gone in there
○ There is residential, mauka of that
○ There is also residential makai

■ Those two big yellow blobs
■ Going down into Kamalomaloʻo

○ The commercial is red
■ That’s along the highway

○ We are trying to stick to those existing Land Use Designations
○ Whenever beneficiaries come in and request land, we tell if you want to do that, it’s going to

have to go in the area designated for commercial
■ Or you can use the area designated for special district
■ We also want people to be able to mālama those areas
■ If KKOA wanted to mālama the area makai of the Ulupono project, they just couldn’t do

anything permanent or get a long-term lease or license to the area designated for
residential

○ That’s how we try to guide, when community groups want to use Hawaiian Homelands
■ We have to follow the land use map
■ What JoRina was saying, having up to date land use maps is really important

● And I’m totally supporting that
● Andrew: Ok, I don't know, Kuʻulei, if your hand was up again or didn’t lower it before
● Kuʻulei: I didn’t lower it before, sorry
● Andrew: Oh, no worries

○ JoRina you just raised your hand, go ahead
● JoRina: Yeah, so the idea is, how long would this 10 acres would be

○ I understand they want 30 but the Commission said go for 10
○ How long is this for

■ Thought it was for 5 years
■ Did I see that somewhere or did I misinterpret that

○ How long would the project be for
● Andrew: The initial disposition that the Commission gave to KKOA for due diligence was for 5 years

○ I think I will defer to KKOA on how long they were thinking of utilizing the property for or how
long they would be seeking a long term license from the Department

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

11 

● JoRina: So is this a lease or are they asking for a license
○ What are they asking for
○ Because I know that KIUC is, there is a time limit, it’s not forever
○ That’s my question, how long is this project going to be on this 10 acres for

● Andrew: I guess, someone from KKOA can express how long they envision the project to be along this
area

● Kuʻulei: I guess I’ll speak to that, thank you for the question
○ Honestly we don't know the answer to how long
○ We would like to have a longer license
○ Our understanding, a lease is when someone is requesting a lease that is willing to pay the

market value of the property for the lease
■ That’s my understanding

○ A license is usually a nonprofit to get the same thing to a lease, similar to a lease, but it’s called
a license

○ We were hoping for 25 years
■ It's not really in our hands
■ We don't know how long we’ll be here
■ We would love for the next generation to take ahold of the vision and the kuleana to see

the importance of this project for their community
○ I wish I have the answer, but I don't

● Andrew: Thank you for that, and thank you for the question JoRina
○ Anyone else that hasn’t had an opportunity, would like to either ask a question on the subject, if

you don't really have manaʻo on the subject yet
○ Question may help lead you to your manaʻo
○ Or if you already have manaʻo on this subject, please feel free to share, especially for those who

have not had the opportunity to talk or participate in the chat
● Nancy: We know it’s a lot of information to process, we apologize for that

○ We want you to have as complete information as possible
● Andrew: JoRina, go ahead
● JoRina: As a beneficiary and a lessee

○ How can we get DHHL to update our Land Use Map
● Andrew: For this specific project, any update to the map would require commission approval

○ If you do like the amendment we showed tonight, then you can let us know, share that manaʻo
with us

○ We can put that in the report
○ These are the next steps in the slide I’m showing you
○ Hopefully that answered your question
○ Rae, I see your hand up

● Rachelle: On behalf of KKOA we really want to thank you guys for having this beneficiary consultation
meeting

○ It’s very important to us to hear from the applicants, lessees, that’s how this actually all got
started

○ It’s always good, we think it’s always good to hear the heartbeat of the community and where
things are at and what they see as valuable and important to the community

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

12 

■ That is KKOA’s heart
■ We definitely don't want to be a hindrance to anything
■ Whatever ways we can support the community, we want to be able to do that

○ We do have, to confirm what Andrew has said as well
■ We do have a 5-year license
■ We’re hoping that will definitely remained honored
■ If we have 5 years, KKOA is going to give it its very best shot to be a blessing to the

community
● Andrew: Mahalo Rae

○ See comments in the chat, I just want to clarify
○ JoRina, you stated in the chat, please update the Anahola Land Use Map
○ Just to clarify your comment and make sure we accurately interpreted your comment

■ You are wanting the Department to proceed with the land use amendment that we
showed tonight, just want to make sure

● JoRina: Yes, and update it and correct it
● Andrew: Ok, thank you

○ Pua said mahalo nui for the information
○ Lorilani same question I had for JoRina, just wanted to make sure that we captured your manaʻo

correctly
■ You are requesting that the Department update the map per the proposed amendment

that we showed on that slide, is that correct
○ Ok, thank you
○ We’re coming up to 7:50, scheduled to go to 8:00
○ Just want to make sure that everyone who took the time out of their busy lives
○ See something from Maile

■ Maile, is it ok if I read your question
■ Question is how to pass my Hawaiian home to my son
■ I have 50% Hawaiian, I’ve been on the list since 1983, I cannot afford to build
■ My son has 43.3125% Hawaiian
■ What do I need to do

○ We’ll probably have to refer you to our Homestead Services division
■ Thank you for leaving your email
■ Yeah, your question is about successorship
■ We’ll refer your question to the Homestead Services Division who helps to process those

types of questions, so thank you for that question
○ Ok, just want to thank everyone who took the time to participate tonight, especially those who

voiced manaʻo on this topic
○ Thank you for… it's not easy sometimes to share your ideas, thoughts, or beliefs, but we

appreciate that
○ Anyone, last call for questions or comments

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

13 

Slide Presentation by Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA)  
From 19:27 - 35:39 of Recording 

Notes
● Rachelle: Aloha Kākou

○ I am Rachelle Nam, Executive Director of Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola
○ Most people in Anahola know us as KKOA
○ Just to share why we are a part of this meeting
○ 10 acres that Nancy has been talking about is an area that the Ulupono Anahola project has

gotten started
○ We actually started working on this back in 2017
○ Back then is when we talked to people in the Anahola community

■ We did a mailout
○ Part of why our mission and our vision is what is noted here is because of what Anahola

residents mentioned was important to them
○ We are compelled and committed to providing safe places and spaces specifically to deter

suicide
○ We believe we can do that by building life skills to strengthen people’s identities through

Hawaiian values
■ By empowering individuals to successfully manage their future
■ By establishing healthy, sustainable, and thriving Hawaiian community

○ For those of you who have never heard of this, KKOA started because of the three deaths by
suicide of teens in Anahola

○ Kuʻulei Punua and Manulele Clarke are the founders of KKOA
○ Just by speaking, they literally went door to door in the community, asking what can be done

■ What can we help with to be able to deter suicide and help with that area
○ At that time, Kauaʻi and Anahola had the highest rates of deaths by suicide
○ KKOA basically started very simple, and believed that trying to keep the families together is a

huge deterrent to suicide
○ They started movie nights, started up at Anahola clubhouse, continued it even down to this

makai site, Ulupono Anahola site
○ Even through Covid, we were able to receive permission to do a drive-thru

■ We saw a lot of families, everything was getting shut down
■ We started hearing of anxieties and fears of what was going to happen
■ We received permission to do the movie nights so people could come out
■ We did it in a safe manner of just a drive-in type of movie night
■ Feedback from community

● Some of the kupuna who were so fearful during time of Covid actually felt safe,
they could go out, be with their ‘ohana even if it was hanging in the car

● Being able to see their neighbors as well
○ Since then, we have also partnered with Kanuikapono Schools
○ Started our resilient leaders and food security program

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

14 

○ During Covid, if people wanted to continue to come out safely and learn how to grow their own
food

■ Everybody saw the cutoff of food system on Kauaʻi was horrible
■ A lot of our farmers on the island, basically gave of themselves to provide for the

community
■ KKOA has partnered with ʻĀina Hoʻokupu o Kīlauea

● Provides veggie boxes to Anahola
■ Partnered with Nourish Kauaʻi

● Provides to 100 households with kupuna, every week on Wednesday
● Items they have in meal kits are all Kauaʻi grown
● All from local people from our island on Kauaʻi, everything is fresh
● It serves 102 households every week

○ Each meal feeds 4 people
○ Providing for 400 people specifically in Anahola community

○ Somehow a lot of different orgs continue to contact us
■ And ask if Anahola has different needs

● Whether food
● Diapers

○ KKOA also provides to young moms in Anahola with diapers every month
○ Many of the young moms have more than one young child in diapers

○ We believe that once weʻre able to provide in the Ulupono Anahola area, families will be able to
learn how to grow their own food

■ And it is not just for lessees
■ We want to be able to open to applicants, beneficiaries

● So when their time comes and they get their home, the know exactly what they
want to grow in their own properties

○ We have spent almost $1M invested on that property to do an environmental assessment
■ The community came out to clear out all of the trash that was in there
■ We know that area was a fire hazard to the Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai residential area
■ We had other organizations that jumped in to help remove the abandoned vehicles
■ Also partnered with Jeremie Makepa, as he has been clearing the coastline as well with

a lot of the cars
■ What we’d like to continue to see in that area, safe place that families can come together

○ Plan to have commercial kitchen that can be used for Anahola residents
■ Weʻve been given opportunities by some of our funders to visit other areas on how they

have been successful in utilizing their commercial kitchens for their specific communities
■ Pretty amazing, we’d love to see that happen in Anahola

○ We also want to be able to provide training for our youth
■ Right now the work that we’re doing, we have an amazing farm manager, program

manager, and program assistant
■ Has been training the youth at Kanuikapono School, we meet with them close to every

other week
● They’re learning how to use the resources right here in Anahola

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

15 

● How to use the things that they’re learning to really be a helpful member in their
family

■ All of that we believe helps to build stronger families
■ Will help to keep suicide out of the thoughts of their mind
■ Help them to know that they are in a community that is supportive of them, of their

education, dreams they might have
■ Learning different schools
■ Did workshops on how to build raised garden beds

● Youth built it for their kupuna
● Learned how to use Skilsaws

○ We also partnering with Hoʻakeolapono Trade Academy
■ Who helped us lay the footings for some of the containers for some of our heavy

equipment
■ It’s giving them opportunity to learn how to do their trade as well

○ Lot of what we’re hoping to do is provide for the Anahola community
○ You can see what the plan is

■ Also have a billboard
■ Had some of the community members help put up the fence line
■ Kupuna came out to help put up the fence line and giving us their council on what would

be beneficial in teaching the kids
● Making sure we have those resources

■ We’ve been blessed by the manaʻo of the kupuna and community members who are
amazing leaders in Anahola

○ That is our project, sorry I didn't go by the slides
○ I get excited what we see the youth learning, what we see, skills we’re able to provide an

opportunity for the youth and mentors to use the property
○ We want to be able to provide food for the community as well

■ So we’re not dependent on outsiders
○ This particular workshop

■ We’ve done several workshops
■ We brought in several practitioners
■ These are some of the workshops we’ve offered not only to the youth but to their families

● So they are working together in making their papa kuʻi ʻai and papa pōhaku
● And being able to meet some of the amazing practitioners on the island and in

Anahola
■ Students in Kanuikapono School learning how to do soil testing
■ We had CTAHR come in and teach them why the soil is important

● Why doing the soil testing
● If we’re going to growing food, want to make sure the soil is good for that
● Or what kind of amendments do we need

○ We’ve incorporated education in just the process
■ Not of just clearing the land
■ Being able to have the community themselves be part of what needs to be done, what is

being done

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

16 

■ It’s for them, for the residents
○ We also, we’re required if we’re putting up any buildings to do an Environmental Assessment

(EA)
■ We just recently completed that
■ I know that if you have any questions on that, Kawika McKeague, who was our

consultant from Group 70 is also on this Zoom call
● Can probably answer if you have any specific questions to that

■ Everything that was done through the EA, there were no conflicts or areas of concern

DHHL Overview Presentation on Planning System 
From 5:20 - 19:27 of Recording 

● Nancy: Mahalo Andrew
○ Aloha kākou
○ Thank you all for joining us this evening
○ Little refresher

■ Have a General Plan implementing the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act (HHCA)
● Mainly through Land Use Designations and other policies

■ We have just updated that
● Will be looking at some newer information about Land Use Designations a little

further along in the presentation
○ The second tier is Strategic Program Plans and Island Plans

■ This meeting is about amending the Island Plan for Anahola
■ It’s updated every 20 years

● Last updated for Kauaʻi in 2005
■ Also have Regional Plans

● Recently updated Anahola Regional Plan
● That’s ready to go forward with implementation of priority projects

■ Development Plans
● Actually have a development for Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai
● Part of the reason why we’re here tonight
● Sometimes there are adjustments that are made
● Trying to reconcile the maps with each other

○ When we implement these plans, we use funding, includes
■ Capital improvement planning
■ Operating budget, etc
■ Legislation

● Just recently adopted, couple years ago, Planning System Rules
● Will talk about those in a minute

■ Land Use Designations
● Reviews and amendment process
● That’s what we’ll be sharing about tonight

○ Always trying to do evaluation
ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

17 

■ Always willing to hear how this is working for people
■ What people understand or don't understand
■ How we can implement the planning system better
■ Weʻre always seeking to improve how we do planning for Hawaiian Homelands

○ Kauaʻi Island plan was updated in 2004
■ As you all know, on the right is Anahola, Kamalomaloʻo area
■ We designated land use for Moloaʻa back in 2004 for that region

○ We have updated the DHHL General Plan
■ We have residential homestead use
■ Subsistence agriculture

● There is some of it in Anahola
● We’re proposing more in the mauka area with the kuleana settlement plan

■ We have supplemental agriculture on some islands
■ We have pastoral

● On all the islands except Oʻahu
■ We have a new Land Use Designation for the kuleana homestead

● Without infrastructure except for leaps and bounds and roadway access
○ Non-homesteading use designations

■ Stewardship is a new designation
● Allows beneficiaries to access the land, to mālama that area
● Short term interim use

■ Conservation
● Usually aligns with areas that should not have any development
● Sensitive, there may be cultural sites
● May be steep slopes
● Riparian, river areas, that sort of thing

■ Special district
● Some special district in Anahola area, mainly along coastline, south of Anahola

Bay
● Requires additional planning

■ Community uses
● Mainly what we'll be talking about today
● Space for parks and recreation, cultural actives, community-based economic

development
● Some infrastructure, public facilities
● Education and training

■ Community agriculture is a new category
■ Andrew, can you explain a little bit about that one for us?

● Andrew: Sure
○ Community agriculture came from beneficiary consultation when we did the General Plan

update
■ Mainly for urban areas, where our beneficiaries wanted spaces for community gardens
■ Spaces where we could potentially grow crops, space wouldn't be suitable for full time

homesteading

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

18 

■ It was a distinction that lots of beneficiaries wanted to see, mostly in urban areas where
there are less open spaces for agriculture

● Nancy: Thanks, Andrew
○ We have another new one, renewable energy
○ Siting for renewable energy projects
○ Commercial

■ Areas that are going to hopefully generate some economic opportunities for the Trust
■ And possibly for community-based economic development activities for beneficiaries

○ Industrial
■ For mostly going to generate revenue for the Trust

○ These are our Land Use Designations
■ Small and hard to see, will zoom in
■ Green areas are subsistence ag, supplemental ag, and conservation
■ Yellow areas are residential homesteading
■ Orange areas are special district
■ Do have scattered around, some community use areas in blue
■ Some commercial areas in red
■ Those are the main categories
■ Do have some general ag also
■ We will be looking at updating this Island Plan in the next several years

○ Map shows the project location (Anahola LUD’s and Project Location)
■ With the existing 2004 Land Use Designation
■ At that time, approximately 24 acre area, in light blue

● Sandwiched in the middle of the residential homesteading, was set aside
● When Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai was laid out, it didn't exactly follow this Land Use

Designation Map
● When we do these Island Plan Land Use Designations, it’s kind of at the 20,000

ft level
○ We don't have parcels yet, it’s very general
○ Once those subdivisions are laid out and there are more refined land use

analysis, typography, drainage, all that stuff, it gets refined
○ We didn't update the Land Use Plan based on the Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai,

Anahola res lots development plan
○ Kind of why we’re in the place we’re in

○ As you can see, there are more community use to the makai areas
○ More residential use going makai, also North and South of the Ulupono site
○ What were looking at, on map on the right

■ Showing what was shown in 2004 Plan as 26 acres
■ What is shown on the left is the school expansion area, charter school

● Only about 10 acres, not quite 13 acres
■ 10 acres proposed for Ulupono Anahola Project on makai side

○ What we’re actually doing, breaking up community use blob which is now homestead area
■ We will update the map as soon as we can
■ Basically breaking up into the 13-acre area and 10-acre area

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

19 

■ Kind of just dividing it
■ There is not going to be any reduction in the area that’s being used for residential

homesteading
○ According to our administrative rules passed a few years ago

■ We have a process for amending Land Use Designations for the Island Plan in between
updates

■ The Department can initiate it
■ Beneficiaries can initiate it
■ If people have a property interest, which could be a lease or license

● If they have an interest and want to to request that reclassification
■ Amendments need to be approved by the HHC
■ Entire process is laid out in the administrative rules
■ If you want a copy of those, we can definitely email it to you

○ When we are evaluating a request to amend a Land Use Designation
○ It’s kind of a mini, land use analysis is what we call it

■ These are the things the Department’s evaluating
● Planning office in recommending an amendment
● Then the commission has to understand these points in order to make its

decision whether to approve or not to approve
■ We look at existing use and characteristics of the subject property, most importantly the

surrounding lands
■ Because we’re looking at the compatibility of the land use and activities with existing

uses and surrounding lands
■ We also want to understand the socio-economic, environmental, and cultural impacts of

proposed use or activities
■ Required to do beneficiary consultation and incorporate that feedback when reporting

back to the commission on the proposed amendment
○ What we’d like to do now, Andrew, we would like to switch to KKOA’s slides

■ They are going to talk about their project
■ Where they’re at
■ How much they’ve achieved
■ And all of the things they’ve done to get to this point
■ Hoping they can give us an update on their latest activities

○ Hand it over to Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola
■ That’s Rae Nam and Kuʻulei and Kawika McKeague is the Consultant for Group 70

Introduction  
From 0:00 - 5:20 of Recording 
Notes 

● Andrew: Purpose for tonight’s meeting
○ To give beneficiaries an opportunity to get information, ask questions and comment on a

proposed amendment to the DHHL Kauaʻi Island Plan

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

20 

○ The amendment is needed in order to make the community use of KKOA Ulupono Anahola
Project consistent with DHHL’s Kauaʻi Island Plan

○ Tonight's agenda
■ Getting through introductions
■ Talk about Department’s Kauaʻi Island Plan

● And DHHL Land Use Designations
○ What that means
○ What the Department’s Kauaʻi Island Plan is and is not
○ What the Land Use Designation process entails

○ Fortunate to have members of KKOA here with us tonight
■ They will give an overview of their proposed project
■ As well as recent environmental assessment they completed

● That describes the compatibility of the proposed project with the surrounding
environment

○ Then go over next steps
○ Finally, your turn to talk, give manaʻo or ask questions
○ Housekeeping

■ While we are rather well versed in zoom meetings
■ Just reminder, when not talking, keep microphone on mute

● Eliminate background noise
■ Two ways to participate in this meeting

● Can raise hand, virtual hand
● Or can type question in the chat

○ Nancy and I will try our best to get to questions in chat
○ Meeting is getting recorded and will be posted on Department’s website
○ Since it’s a virtual meeting

■ Will keep track of who participated in meeting
■ If you don't mind typing in chat, your name, where you live, and if you are a DHHL

applicant on waitlist, existing DHHL homestead lessee, or other
○ While virtual meeting, like all of our Hawaiian Homelands meetings

■ We do have kuleana to each other to make this a successful, healthy and productive
meeting

■ Please be respectful of person talking
■ Do not interrupt person that is talking
■ Wait for the facilitator to call on you
■ Or type your question in the chat box
■ Tonight I will be your facilitator and Nancy will help monitor the chat
■ When addressing other participants whether verbally or in the chat box

● Please be respectful
● Show people aloha
● Treat others how you would like to be treated

○ Upfront lets agree that others may have different perspectives, and that’s ok
○ Lastly and most importantly

■ Goes for Department staff as well
ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

21 

■ Please have an open mind
■ Take home new ideas and information

○ With that, pass it on to Nancy McPherson to give an overview of Department’s Planning System
■ Our Island Plans
■ Our Land Use Designations
■ And process we go through to amend Land Use Designations

○ We’ll try our best to explain these technical planning terms in simple language
○ Thank you, Nancy

Next Steps & Closing  
From 35:39 - 38:15 of Recording 

Notes
● Nancy: Just wanted to mention if I may

○ When we do a Land Use Analysis for an amendment
○ Actually helpful to already have the EA
○ They were looking at different kinds of potential impacts and had to mitigate them so it wouldn’t

cause any impacts to the surrounding community
○ So that was really helpful in order to recommend that we move forward with the Land Use

Amendment
○ These are the next steps

■ Want to mention
■ After this beneficiary consultation, we’ll take all of your comments
■ There will also be a 30-day comment period, we’ll talk about that more on the last slide
■ We’ll be taking your comments for 30 days (December 15, 2022 - January 14, 2023)
■ Everything will be posted on the webpage
■ That report will go to HHC for acceptance
■ Once that has been accepted, we can request approval for the Land Use Amendment
■ Really this is their last step to getting a long term license
■ We’re hoping that can happen hopefully sooner than August

● Andrew: This slide gives an overview of the previous actions that the Department and KKOA and the
Hawaiian Homes Commission have taken on this project to date

○ As Rachelle mentioned, the Commission approved the final EA a couple months ago in October
● Nancy: We do have a few more slides, do we want Kawika to talk to those, on the other presentation,

do you want to go back to that
● Andrew: If there are other questions, we can take them at that time

○ Think we’ve done a lot of talking
○ Nancy in the previous slides went over next steps
○ This is just the beginning of the consultation process
○ For those of you who might have joined late, this meeting is being recorded, we’ll post the

meeting recording to the website if you missed anything in the beginning of the meeting
○ You can also email your comments to dhhl.planning@hawaii.gov
○ The meeting recording will be posted on the DHHL website

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

22 

■ I know there was a question in the chat on when will be posting it
■ Probably within the next week or so we will be posting on the website
■ Same website that you used to access the Zoom meeting tonight

○ Last slide was just to let you folks know that we talked so now it’s our turn to listen and your turn
to talk

Closing from 1:19:05 - 1:20:33 
● Andrew: Next steps again

○ To keep the comment period open for the next 30 days
○ If you are like me, should have said that, you still have time to comment on the manner
○ If you know someone who wanted to attend to night but couldn’t because of conflicting priorities
○ Please feel free to refer them to the website below

■ In a week or less we should have the meeting recording on the website
■ They can watch the presentation and email comments to dhhl.planning@hawaiʻi.gov

○ Ok, alright, just want to mahalo everyone
○ Commissioner Neves did you have any closing thoughts

● Commissioner Neves: No, I don't
○ Thank you Andrew, know these are important things for our beneficiaries to voice their opinions
○ And if they haven't tonight, I’m sure they will in the comments as we move forward
○ Thank you for the opportunity

● Andrew: Thank you commissioner, just want to wish everyone happy holidays
○ Stay safe and we will see you in the new year

Chat 
● 18:35:43 From Pua Prem To Everyone: Elizabeth Prem
● 18:35:46 From Chanel Josiah To Everyone: What will it be posted to the departments website?
● 18:35:57 From Maile Cummings To Everyone: Maile Cummings
● 18:36:01 From Justin To Everyone: Justin Shanks
● 18:36:03 From Rachelle Nam’s iPhone To Everyone: Rae Nam - applicant on waitlist
● 18:36:09 From Chanel Josiah To Everyone: Chanel Josiah, Lessee
● 18:36:12 From Pua Prem To Everyone: lessee
● 18:36:18 From JoRina To Everyone: JoRina Holland, Lessee, PMKK
● 18:36:29 From Kawahine Kaui To Everyone: HenrieRose Kaui
● 18:36:33 From Kona Russell To Everyone: Brian Kona Russell, Applicant
● 18:36:41 From Lorilani To Everyone:Lorilani Keohokālole, Applicant
● 18:36:44 From ASH To Everyone: Ashley Alapai, Anahola, Lessee
● 18:36:58 From Henry Smith To Everyone: Destiny and Henry Smith, Pi’ilani mai ke kai phase 2
● 18:37:10 From Lono Aki To Everyone: Lono Aki, applicant
● 18:37:20 From Joseph janicki To Everyone: Joseph Janicki Sr.
● 18:37:23 From Kuulei To Everyone: Kuʻuleialoha Punua applicant
● 18:37:39 From Kawika McKeague To Everyone: Kawika McKeague; Koolaupoko, Oahu; not a

beneficiary or applicant. I represent the planning team assisting KKOA through the environmental
review.

● 18:37:45 From Kahanu To Everyone:Kahanu smith applicant
ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



12-15-2022 Kūkulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) Ulupono Anahola Project Meeting
Virtual Beneficiary Consultation Meeting
December 15, 2022, 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm
DHHL Notice | Video Recording

23 

● 19:26:29 From Lorilani To Everyone: Yes, that’s helpful
● 19:31:21 From Lorilani To Everyone: Good point
● 19:32:28 From Lorilani To Everyone: Right…
● 19:33:11 From Melissia To Everyone: KKOA is an awesome organization, work done to clean is visible

& they have impacted the community tremendously.
● 19:34:16 From Kawika McKeague To Andrew H. Choy: Rough calc on assumption of 80% use of

available land on 10-acres is 45 lots
● 19:35:35 From Kona Russell To Everyone: 10,000 square ft lots = 1/4 acre approximate, 3-4 lots per

acre + roads. My guess is 25-30+ residential lots on 10 acres.
● 19:36:06 From Lorilani To Everyone: Mahalo Kona
● 19:37:02 From Kalani To Everyone: How many residential lots could be put on the land used by KIUC

for the solar farm?
● 19:46:03 From JoRina To Everyone: Please update the Anahola Land Use Map.
● 19:46:29 From Pua Prem To Everyone: mahalo nui for the information
● 19:47:39 From Lorilani To Everyone: We request an update to the Anahola LUP. Mahalo
● 19:48:44 From Lorilani To Everyone: Yes
● 19:52:47 From Stephenie Silva To Everyone: Mahalo

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT C



Original Message
From: JoRina Holland <jorinaholland@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 15, 2022 7:20 PM
To: DHHL.Planning <dhhl.planning@hawaii.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Kauai Anahola Special District @ PMKK

Aloha,

How can we (PMKK Lessees) change the “Special District” area located behind lots 62 65 & the ocean to allow the
county of Kauai to continue the bike path from Kealia to Anahola?

Mahalo,

JoRina Holland
PMKK Lessee
(254) 913 2964

Kaui Neves <kneves52@gmail.com> � 
To: DHHL.Planning 
Cc:  Dennis Neves 

Tue 1/3/2023 7:14 PM 
Aloha, 
I am a residential applicant on Kauai. 
I oppose the departments proposed amendment to designate residential use land to community use 
to accommodate the KKOA project. Placing beneficiaries on the land should be the priority of the 
trust. 
Lynnette Kaui Neves 

From: Kuulei Punua
To: DHHL.Planning
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Approval to Proposed Amendment RE: KKOA
Date: Tuesday, January 10, 2023 11:31:16 AM

 Beneficiary Consultation Meeting (Online) 
Date: Dec. 15,2022 
(Amendments to the Kaua’i Island Plan)
Kukulu Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) 
Ulupono Anahola Project

To Whom it may Concern:
As a Beneficiary and Applicant on the waiting list for both Residential and Agricultural
Lands;
I approve the amendment proposed by the DHHL Planning Department that was
brought to the beneficiaries attention on Dec 15th.

Mahalo nui loa
 Ke Akua pu
Me ke aloha pumehana
Kuuleialoha Punua ITEM G-2

EXHIBIT D



From: Dennis Neves <dneves71@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, January 15, 2023 4:17 PM 
To: Choy, Andrew H <andrew.h.choy@hawaii.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Reclassify residential use to community use for KKOA project 

Andrew, 
For the record as a beneficiary,  I am opposed to reclassifying the residential use area to 
community use for the KKOA project. The departments priority is to rehabilitate native 
Hawaiians by placing them on the land. This project should be relocated.  
Regards, 
Dennis Neves 

Kahanu Keawe <kahanukeawe@gmail.com> 

To:  DHHL.Planning 
Mon 1/16/2023 3:14 AM 

Aloha DHHL Planning Department, 

  
    o 

 

-- 
Mahalo, 
Kahanu Keawe 

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT D



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Beneficiary Consultation on Amendments
to the Kaua i Island Plan for the

Kukulu Kumuhana o Anahola (KKOA)
Ulupono Anahola Project

December 15, 2022
Meeting will start at 6:30pm

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Purpose of Tonight’s Meeting

The purpose of tonight’s meeting is to give beneficiaries
(Anahola lessees and Kaua i waitlist applicants who reside on
Kaua i) an opportunity to get information, ask questions, and
comment on a proposed amendment to the DHHL Kauai
Island Plan.

The amendment is needed in order to make the Community
Use of the Kukulu Kumuhana o Anahola’s (KKOA) Ulupono
Anahola Project Consistent with the DHHL Kaua i Island Plan.

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.1



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Agenda
Introductions
DHHL Kauai Island Plan and DHHL Land Use Designations
Land Use Designation Amendment Process
Overview of KKOA’s Kukulu Kumuhana o Anahola’s (KKOA)
Ulupono Anahola Project
Compatibility of KKOA’s Ulupono Anahola Project with the
Surrounding Environment
Next Steps
Comments and Questions

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Housekeeping

• Please keep your microphone on mute when
you are not talking

• Type your questions in the chat or raise your
virtual hand

• Please keep in mind this meeting is being
recorded

• In the CHAT please sign in (First & Last Name,
where you live, applicant, lessee, or other)

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT E

P.2



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Meeting Kuleana
Be respectful of the person talking – please do not interrupt the person 
that is talking;

Wait for the facilitator to call on you or type your question into the chat 
box;

When addressing other participants (verbally or in the chat box), be 
respectful, show aloha, treat others how you would like to be treated;

Agree to disagree — accept that others may have different perspectives 
and opinions;

Have an open mind — take home new ideas or new information.

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

DHHL Planning System

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT E

P.3



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

DHHL Kaua i Island Plan (2004)

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

DHHL Island Plan Land Use Designations
DHHL Land Use Designations for Homestead Use*

*As defined in DHHL General Plan 2022

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.4



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

DHHL Island Plan Land Use Designations
DHHL Land Use Designations for Non Homestead Use*

*Per DHHL General Plan 2022

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Anahola Land Use Designations (KIP 2004)

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT E

P.5



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Anahola LUD’s and Project Location

Project Location

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Proposed Island Plan Land Use Amendment

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.6



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Land Use Designation Amendment Process
• Who may initiate an Island Plan Land Use Designation

Amendment?
• DHHL
• DHHL beneficiaries
• Persons with property interest in Hawaiian Home Lands for

which the reclassification is being sought
• Island Plan Land Use Designation Amendments must be

approved by the Hawaiian Homes Commission
• The land use amendment process is outlined in the Planning

System Administrative Rules, HAR Chapter 10-4-54(c)

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Land Use Designation Amendment Process
• Hawaiian Homes Commission must consider the following

information in its decision-making when considering a land
use amendment:

• Existing use and characteristics of the subject property and
surrounding lands;

• The compatibility of the proposed land use and activities with
existing uses and surrounding lands;

• Socio-economic, environmental, and cultural impacts of proposed
use and activities;

• Beneficiary consultation and feedback on the proposed amendment.

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.7



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Need for Island Plan Amendment

Overview of Kukulu Kumuhana o Anahola’s (KKOA) 
Ulupono Anahola Project

UUlupono Anahola
An Agricultural Community Garden and Youth Center

BENEFICIARY CONSULTATION
Kauai Island Plan Land Use Designation

Amendment

Presented by:
K kulu Kumuhana O Anahola, G70

December 15, 2022

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT E

P.8



KKOA Mission and
Vision

We are compelled and committed
to providing safe places and
spaces to deter suicide by

BUILDING life skills to strengthen
their identity through Hawaiian

values, by EMPOWERING
individuals to successfully

manage their future, and by
ESTABLISHING a healthy,

sustainable and thriving Hawaiian
community.

Project Location
• Anahola Ahupua a, Ko olau District,
Kaua i Mokupuni

• TMK (4) 4 8 003:019 (por.)

• A 10 acre parcel

• Ten acres were designated Community
Use in Kaua i Island Plan (2004)

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.9



Community
Benefits

Rehabilitation of a 10 acre parcel.

A safe educational / agricultural training
site for students, beneficiaries, and
community.

A safe place with opportunities to build life
skills and economic development.

Provide opportunities to build self identity
through cultural values.

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.10



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Land Use Compatibility Analysis

KKOA Presentation on Project Components and 
Final Environmental Assessment Findings

Project
Components
• Marae
• Hale H l wai
• Youth Center
• Kitchen
• Processing Area
• Co op Space
• Community Gardens
• Mala L au Lapa au

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.11



Comments on
Draft EA
AGENCY/ORGANIZATION TYPE OF COMMENT
‘ ina Ho okupu O K lauea Letter of Support

Mason Chock, Vice Chair, County Council Letter of Support

Department of Health – Clean Air Branch Standard Comments

UH M noa College of Tropical Agriculture and
Human Resources, Cooperative Extension
Office

Letter of Support

Kauai Animal Education Farm Letter of Support

Office of Planning and Sustainable
Development

No Comments at this
Time

Mitigation Measures
• Compliance with Chapter 6E Historic
Preservation

• Best Management Practices (BMPs)
• Water conservation
• Soil erosion
• Fugitive Dust
• Wastewater Treatment and Management

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.12



Project History

DATE ACTION

January 2019 KKOA submits land use request to DHHL

August 2019 Beneficiary Consultation

September 2019 HHC accepts BC Report

September 2019 HHC approves ROE (No. 698) to KKOA for 2 year due diligence

November 2020 DHHL issues ROE (No. 698)

September 2021 KKOA requests 30 year license from DHHL

September 2021 Ch. 343 EA Exemption issued by DHHL for Due Diligence

November 2021 HHC grants KKOA a license agreement for 5 years

Technical Studies:
• Biological Assessment (G70)
• Noise Assessment Report (Censeo)
• Transportation Impact Analysis (Fehr & Peers)
• Cultural Impact Assessment (Nohopapa)
• Archaeological Literature Review and Field
Inspection (Nohopapa)

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.13



Community Outreach
& Early Consultation
Federal:

• U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

State:

• Department of Agriculture

• Department of Education

• Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

• Department of Health, Clean Water Branch

• Department of Land and Natural Resources

• House Representative District 14, Nadine Nakamura

• Kauai Cooperative Extension Office, UH M noa College of Tropical Agriculture
and Human Resources

• Office of Hawaiian Affairs

• Senator District 8, Ron Kouchi

Community Outreach
& Early Consultation
County:
• County Council (All members)
• Department of Planning
• Department of Public Works
• Department of Water
• Kaua i Fire Department
• Kaua i Police Department
• Mayor Derek Kawakami
• Transportation Agency

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.14



Community Outreach
& Early Consultation
Organizations and Individuals:
• Go Farm Hawai i
• ina Ho okupu O K lauea
• Kalalea View Farm
• Limahuli Garden & Preserve
• Kauai Animal Education Center
• The Farm at Hokuala
• Waip Foundation

• M lama Kaua i
• Kalalea Anahola Farmers Hui,
Aggie Marti Kinney

• Kanuikapono Public Charter
School

• Pi ilani Mai Ke Kai Homeowners
Association

• Ka Hale Pono
• N Maka Onaona

Next Steps

Acceptance of BC
Report by Hawaiian
Homes Commission
(Jan/Feb 2023)

HHC Approval of
Land Use

Amendment
(Feb/Mar 2023)

Long Term License
(Aug 2023)

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT E

P.15



Mahalo nui loa!
UluponoAnahola@g70.design

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Recent past actions on the project
DHHL conducted a beneficiary consultation meeting on KKOA’s request
to use DHHL land for its Ulupono Anahola Project (August 7, 2019)

The Hawaiian Homes Commission approved a 5-year license to KKOA
(September 2021) to conduct due diligence

KKOA conducted an HRS Chapter 343 Environmental Assessment of its
project; prepared by consultant G70

The Hawaiian Homes Commission approved KKOA’s Final
Environmental Assessment and Finding of No Significant Impact
(October 2022)

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.16



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Tentative Next Steps
• Beginning tonight, 30-day comment period on the proposed Land Use

Amendment; December 15, 2022 to January 14, 2023.  Please email
comments to: dhhl.planning@hawaii.gov

• Recording of tonight’s meeting will be posted here:
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/kauai/kukulu-kumuhana-o-anahola-ulupono-

anahola-project/

• DHHL will present the Beneficiary Consultation Report to the Hawaiian
Homes Commission and seek approval of the Kauai Island Plan Land Use
Amendment in January or February of 2023.

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – PLANNING OFFICE

Mahalo

Ho o N nau

ITEM G-2
EXHIBIT EP.17



- 1 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

STATE OF HAWAI‘I 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

 
February 21, 2023 

 
 
To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
Thru: Andrew Choy, Planning Program Manager 
 

From: Pearlyn Fukuba, Planner plf 
 
Subject: For Information Only – Status Update on Plan 

Implementation in the ʻEwa Moku Region 
 
Recommended Action 
 
 None; for information only. 
 
Background 
 
 By request of the Chairman, the Planning Office provides 
the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) with a status report on 
prior policies and/or plans that affect lands and homestead 
communities where the HHC conducts its monthly community 
meeting.  For February 2023, the Planning Office will be 
providing an update on the DHHL plans related to the ʻEwa Moku 
Region, Oʻahu. 
 
Discussion 
 
EXISTING PLANS & IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 
 
O‘ahu Island Plan Policies Related to Kapolei 
 

The purpose of each DHHL Island Plan is to: 
 
(1) Provide a comprehensive resource for planning and 

land management purposes; 
(2) Establish Land Use Designations for all land holdings 

to promote orderly land use development and efficient 
development of infrastructure systems; and 

(3) Identify island-wide needs, opportunities, and 
priorities.   

 



- 2 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

 
The Oʻahu Island Plan (OIP) was adopted by the HHC in 2014.  

The Island Plan delineated four planning regions or moku for the 
island of Oʻahu:  Waiʻanae, ʻEwa, Kona, and Koʻolaupoko.  The 
2014 OIP identifies the following land use designations and 
acreage amounts for Kapolei, East Kapolei & Kalaeloa. 

 
2014 Oʻahu Island Plan 

 
 
O‘ahu Island Plan Implementation Status 
             
 Since its adoption in July 2014, no suggested land use 
amendments or updates to the Kapolei region have been made to 
the OIP.  The plan acknowledges that Kapolei has been DHHLʻs 
focus for the development of new homesteads on Oʻahu,which 
includes the following: 
 

1) Maluʻōhai is the first homestead to be built in the 
Kapolei Region and consists of 226 lots developed on 
approximately 37 acres of land. Of the 226 homesteads in 
Maluʻōhai, 70 were built as a part of the Kapolei 
Hoʻolimalima Rent with the Option to Purchase Project and 
construction was completed in 2002. As of January 2018, 
all the homes in Hoʻolimalima have been converted to 
homeownership. The remaining 156 homestead lots in 
Maluʻōhai are a mix of 111 turnkey which were completed 
in 2002 and 45 self-help homes which were completed in 
2004.  

  

 2014 Oʻahu Island Plan 
Land Use Designation (LUD) 

Kapolei, East Kapolei 
& Kalaeloa (acres) 

Percent of LUD 
In Kapolei Region 

Percent of LUD 
on O‘ahu 

Special District  0 - 
Conservation 0 0 - 
General Agriculture 0 0 - 
Residential 345 34% 21% 
Pastoral 0 0 - 
Subsistence Agriculture 0 0 - 
Supplemental Agriculture 0 0 - 
Industrial 550 54% 81% 
Community Use 35 4% 11% 
Commercial 80 8% 84% 

TOTALS 1,010 100% 15% 

0 



- 3 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

2) Kaupeʻa is the second homestead in the Kapolei Region 
and includes 326 turnkey homes that were constructed in 
three phases on 52 acres.  Construction was completed in 
2008. 

 
3) Kānehili is the third homestead developed in Kapolei and 

is located on 92 acres and includes 404 homestead 
residential lots, the DHHL offices, fire station and 
commercial parcels.  The homestead includes total of 375 
turnkey houses, 24 self-help or owner-builder houses, 
three owner-builder lots in progress,and two residential 
vacant lots. 

 
4) Kaʻuluokahaʻi is the fourth homestead to be developed in 

the Kapolei Region and the name of the East Kapolei 
master planned community. Increment IIB is the 
first  phase and includes 139 turn-key homes that have 
been completed and occupied and 21 vacant lots selected 
by owner-builders which are in various stages 
of progress. A planned elementary school will be built to 
the east of  Increment IIB.  The first phase of 
the middle school, located to the west of the 
increment, has been completed and is currently  open for 
classes. Additional homestead development is planned for 
the surrounding DHHL lands.  It is expected that 
approximately 1,000 single-family residential lots and 
500 multi-family rental units for DHHL beneficiaries will 
be completed at full build-out.  

 
 A portion of land in Kapolei is designated as commercial 
because of its location within an avigation easement from 
Kalaeloa Airport that restricts residential development density.  
Approximately 65 acres of land has been leased to DeBartolo for 
Ka Makana Ali‘i, a regional shopping center that opened in 
October 2016.  In addition to land designated for commercial 
use, a significant portion of land within Kalaeloa has been 
identified as industrial based on proximity to the active 
airfield. 
 
OIP Priority for Homestead Development - Current DHHL 
initiatives in the ʻEwa Moku Region: 

The need to pursue homestead development is flagged as the 
highest priority in the 2014 OIP.   The OIP notes that Kapolei 
and Waimānalo are the two priority areas for residential 
development.  The OIP also recommends that DHHL acquire 
additional lands on O‘ahu to address the needs of the waiting 
list. 



- 4 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

 
DHHL recently acquired two (2) parcels of land in the ‘Ewa 

Moku, totaling 89 acres, and initiated a rehabilitation project.  
See Exhibit A. 

 
1) 80-acre parcel,ʻEwa Beach: 

 

 
 

‘Ewa Beach, 80-acre parcel 
 

In 2020, DHHL received a Notice of Availabiliy from 
the General Services Administration for a land parcel in 
ʻEwa Beach, Oʻahu.  The approximately 80-acre property was 
the former location of the Pacific Tsunami Warning Center 
and the surplus lands were made available to the Department 
through the Hawaiian Home Lands Recovery Act.  Staff 
commenced due diligence studies on the property to 
investigate the parcelʻs potential to develop and deliver 
homesteads to beneficiaries, and presented it as an 
information item at the July 2020 HHC meeting.  At the 
HHC’s August 2020 meeting, staff presented the offer as an 
action item and the Commission authorized its Chairman to 
select the property.  In February 2021, the U.S. Department 
of the Interior, Office of Native Hawaiian Relations and 
DHHL jointly conducted a beneficiary consultation meeting 
and a 30-day online survey to seek input and comments on 
the potential transfer.  The majority of the survey 
respondents, 73%, supported the conveyance of the parcel to 



- 5 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

DHHL.  The parcel was conveyed via quitclaim deed in July 
2021. 

In Fall 2022, DHHL staff from the Planning Office, 
Land Development Division and NAHASDA commenced on the ‘Ewa 
Beach Homestead Project, Master Plan and Environmental 
Assessment.  The project plans were presented as an 
information item to the Commission in November 2022. 

 
2) 9-acre parcel (Kaupeʻa Phase 2), Kapolei: 

 

 
 

Kaupe‘a Phase 2, 9-acre parcel 
 

In January 2022, the Hawaiʻi Housing Finance and 
Development Corporation (HHFDC) met with DHHL to discuss 
their agencyʻs proposed Request for Proposal to develop 
affordable housing on their approximately 9-acre parcel 
that is adjacent to Kaupe’a.  DHHL expressed a desire to 
acquire the vacant parcel to develop homes for its 
beneficies and the idea was amenable to both agencies.  On 
May 16, 2022, the potential acquisition was presented as an 
information item at the HHC meeting and in July 2022 the 
Commission approved a HHFDC/DHHL Memorandum of 
Understanding to acquire the property.  The conveyance was 
completed in December 2022 and Land Development Division 
anticipates issuing a Request for Proposal in early 2023 to 
develop the infrastructure and houses. 

 
 



- 6 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

 
3) Yorktown Rehabilitation Project:  

 

 
Kalaeloa Yorktown Rehabilitation Project 

 
DHHL is proposing to rehabilitate an existing former 

military personnel quarters at the corner of Yorktown and 
Enterprise Avenues on DHHL land in Kalaeloa, O’ahu.  The 
building currently has 20 units that are either vacant or 
are used as office space. DHHL’s intent is to rehabilitate 
18 of the units for use as temporary transitional housing 
for homeless native Hawaiian beneficiaries that are on 
DHHL’s applicant wait lists. These beneficiaries would not 
be removed from the applicant Waiting List if they accept 
this temporary housing. It is an opportunity for DHHL to 
assist beneficiaries that are not currently positioned to 
accept a lease award. This is not a long-term housing 
solution for these beneficiaries, but rather an opportunity 
to have safe and secure housing as they transition into a 
more permanent housing solution. 
 

DHHL held a beneficiary informational meeting on 
August 23, 2022 to provide an overview about the proposed 
project and receive beneficiary input.  DHHL will select a 
contractor through a Request for Proposal procurement 
process in early 2023. 

 
 



- 7 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

 
2022 Kapolei Regional Plan Update 
 
 The regional plan gives beneficiaries within the region an 
opportunity to have a voice in planning for their future and 
helps to ensure that they are an integral part of the solutions 
to the issues that they have identified. 
 

The process to update the 2010 Kapolei Regional Plan Update 
commenced in October 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,  the 
planning process was conducted through virtual means to ensure 
compliance with health and safety rules and guidelines.  Using 
the virtual platform Zoom, DHHL held meetings with homestead 
association leaders, community organizations, stakeholders and 
agencies.  Beneficiary Consultations were conducted in December 
2020, May 2021 and December 2021. The Kapolei Regional Plan 
Update(Kapolei RPU) was approved by the HHC in March 2022.   
 

The beneficiary consultation process includes a process for 
beneficiaries to revisit and revise their Vision Statement.  
This statement provides a unified direction for homestead, DHHL 
and Commission actions in Kapolei. The vision statement is as 
follows:  
 

“From the Puʻu in the uplands to the shores of Kualakaʻi, Kapolei is a 
growing region that looks to its history, moʻolelo, ʻāina and kūpuna to 
build a strong foundation for our Hawaiian homestead communities. 
Kānaka embrace the area’s rugged climate and terrain, which motivates 
them to be resilient and self-sufficient. The wahi pana and kīpuka of this 
place are celebrated and stewarded for future generations.”  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 8 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

 
2022 Kapolei RPU Priority Projects 
 

The following table describes each of the five (5) Priority 
Projects, action steps identified and the required resources. 
  

Priority Project  Action Steps  Required Resources/ 
Status  

Provide More Options for 
Quality Telecommunications 
Service to Homesteads   

• Document service issues  
• Participate in meetings and 

consultations  
  

• Assistance and 
coordination as needed 

• In January 2022, DHHL 
notified their lessees that 
current Sandwich Isles 
Communications 
customers may now 
choose to use their 
existing service or select 
services from other 
providers.  

Create More Open Spaces, 
Park Spaces, and Recreation 
Spaces to support the 
Homestead Community  

• Community partnership with 
DHHL for open space/park 
development  

• Request for Right of Entry permit 
for due diligence studies   

• Master/Special Area Plan & HRS 
Chapter 343 Compliance   

• Issuance of Finding of No 
Significant Impact (FONSI)  

• Long-term disposition   
• Planning & Permitting   
• Design & Construction   
• Operation & Maintenance  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

• Technical Assistance   
• Funding (Planning, Design 

& Construction)   
• HHC Approval 
• Kanehili Community 

Association (KCA) park 
Phase I opened for use in 
July 2020.  Three (3) 
community workshops for 
Phase II have been 
competed.  KCA is 
fundraising for Phase II 
permitting and 
construction and received 
a Project Implementation 
$100,000 DHHL grant in 
December 2022.  Other 
fundraising efforts are 
ongoing. 

Create a Kūpuna Living 
Community  

• Identify potential locations  
• Due diligence studies  
• Master/Special Area Plan & HRS 

Chapter 343 Compliance   
• Issuance of Finding of No 

Significant Impact (FONSI)  
• Planning & Permitting   
• Design & Construction   
• Operation & Maintenance   

• Technical Assistance   
• Funding (Planning, Design 

& Construction)   
• HHC Approval  



- 9 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

  

Support the Heritage Center 
and Community Commercial 
Development  

• Completion of Hoʻomaka 
Marketplace for revenue 
generation  

• Permitting   
• Design & Construction   
• Monitoring & Reporting  

• Technical Assistance   
• Funding (Planning, Design 

& Construction)  
• A groundbreaking 

ceremony for the 
Hoʻomaka Marketplace 
occurred in June 2022.  
Construction commenced 
and the center is expected 
to be finished by Summer 
2023. 

  
Support the Development of a 
Hawaiian-Focus 
School/Hawaiian Immersion 
School  

• Partner with DHHL, City & State 
agencies, other organizations   

• Identify potential locations  
• Secure site control  
• Planning & Permitting   
• Design & Construction   
• Program implementation  
• Operation & Maintenance  
• Monitoring & Reporting  

• Technical Assistance   
• Funding (Planning, Design 

& Construction)  
• KCDC began due diligence 

for a new preschool in 
Kapolei.  DHHL provided 
assistance regarding the 
status of the Air 
Installations Compatible 
Use Zones that impact the 
area. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
 None; for information only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 10 - 
ITEM NO. G-3 

Exhibit A 
DHHL ‘Ewa Moku Land Holdings 

February 2023 

 













































































































































































































HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2023 

J - ITEMS 

REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE 

COMMISSION 



J-1 Cindy Freitas – Various Concerns
J-2 Dayne Kahau – Lease Issue
J-3 Blossom Freitas – Various Concerns
J-4 Simeon Butch Ramos – Kewalo Lease Concerns
J-5 Lily Napoleon – Naiwa Agricultural Subdivision Alliance.
J-6 Bo Kahui – Lai Opua Community Development Corp.
J-7 Meghann Matsuda – Proposal for displaced individuals
J-8 Steve Bess – Mediation Services
J-9 Maxine Kahaulelio – Puukapu Farm Lot
J-10 Faith Chase - Maui Beneficiary Association
J-11 Robert and Sharmaine Taua – Nanakuli Lease Concerns
J-12 Kamuela Hambek – Homestead Hale Building
J-13 Julie Louie – Payment Dispute

Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting 
February 22, 2023

J Agenda



Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Monday, January 23, 2023 8:00:58 AM

Name

Cindy Freitas
Email

Message

Could u please put me on the February schedule to address the 
commissioner for J agenda on regarding some concerns...mahalo

J-1



From:
To:
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 10:58:09 PM

Name

Dayne Kahau
Email

Message

In regards to my contested case hearing but if I am slated to have my 
contested case hearing in Feb=2023 then disregard this request until then 
this request is active.

J-2



Name

Blossom Feiteira

Email

Message

Request placement on the Hawaiian Homes Commission Agenda item J for February 

Mahalo!!!

J-3
New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony 
Wednesday, January 25, 2023 10:58:09 PM



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Simeon "Butch" Ramos phone 8 Tuesday, 
January 10, 2023 10:01:58 AM

Butch Ramos was promised a letter within a week of the December  meeting from Chairman
Aila, he stated he never got that letter. 

He also wants to be on the J-Agenda, I told him it is to late to be on the January J-Agenda but
we can put him on the February 22, 2023 J-Agenda. He said ok. He does not have a computer. 

He  wants to talk with someone to see where his situation is going with the Department. 

Mahalo,

J-4



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Re: [EXTERNAL] DHHL - J Agenda 
Wednesday, January 25, 2023 1:05:31 PM 
image002.png

Aloha Leatrice:

May I kindly ask to join the J agenda items for February and March 2023.  Mahalo!

J-5




Message

Aloha kakou,

I am writing you today to speak about a plan to solve 
displaced individuals=waiting on housing. Please let 
me know when you are free to discuss. My=number is 
808-631-8672. We have a meeting tonight with all the
non-profits=and county council members to discuss
options. Would love to speak to you=about it.

First Name

Meghann Kealoha

Last Name

Matsuda

Email

kealohaboutique@icloud.com

J-6



From:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Date:

Steve Bess and Mediation Services Offer to DHHL
Friday, January 27, 2023 4:16:09 PM

Aloha.  I would like to introduce Steve Bess to everyone.

Steve spoke to me a few years ago about providing mediation services to our ag/pastoral lessees
free of charge.  He’s involved in a program that he thinks can benefit both the department and our
lessees.

He is interested in making a presentation to the Hawaiian Homes Commission in February or March
’23.  I’ve informed him that a written request to address the HHC needs to go through your office. 
He is cc’d on this email.

Steve Bess 
Email   

Mahalo for your help.  Have a great weekend.

J-7



From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

FW: [EXTERNAL] Maxine Kahaulelio
Monday, February 06, 2023 2:47:48 PM
HHCpgs12345-89-90-Mins-4.22.13.pdf
HHC 2017 pgs 1-12Agenda master - HHC-MINS-MAY-2017-LWB-edit-1.pdf

Testimony is from May 22, 2017, J-Agenda Minutes

GENERAL AGENDA

REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION

ITEM J-3        Maxine Kahaulelio- Pu'ukapu Farm Lot

M. Kahaulelio stated her testimony is a continuation from her Kapolei testimony regarding
her horse. She resides on her Pu`ukapu farm lot. She stated that she wrote a letter of request
to Jobie Masagatani on March 26, 2013, to apply for an RP to occupy lot No. 45, Ag lot, for
her horses. Over time and events, the lot was given back to DHHL.  Jane Bray, who lived on
lot 9, gave a horse to Maxine for her mo`opuna on condition that Maxine stay on Jane’s
property which was 10-acres. Water lines were being installed from the paved road to the
dirt road leading to the Pu`ukapu pastoral lots. The pastures where the animals grazed were
thick with dust and soot which affected the animals. Her horse got sick. She knew she was
not suppose to be on lot 45, but she put her horses on the lot, someone opened the gate for
her. Her horse has since passed and is buried on lot 45.

Please advise if you want me to add her to the February J-Agenda.

Thank you,
Weez

From: Pua K <puakahaulelio@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 2:39 PM
To: Yee Hoy, Louise K <louise.k.yeehoy@hawaii.gov>
Cc: mmkahaulelio@yahoo.com
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Maxine Kahaulelio

Aloha Louise,
I am sending you this email On behalf of my grandmother Maxine Kahaulelio who resides on Puukapu, 
Hawai'i Island. My grandmother would like to Request to Address the Commission J-Agenda at the 
scheduled DHHL meeting feb 21 or/ 22, 2023 in Kapolei, Hawai'i via ZOOM.   We kindly ask that you 
forward this email to whom it may concern to make this possible.  Any questions or concerns you may 
reach myself or my grandmother.
Mahalo,

J-8

































Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting May 22 and 23, 2017, Kamuela, Hawai`i         Page 1 of 19


HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION  
Minutes of May 22, 2017 


Meeting held at Kuhio Hale, Kamuela, Hawai`i  
 


Pursuant to proper call, the 687th Regular Meeting of the Hawaiian Homes Commission was held at 
Kuhio Hale, 64-756 Mamalahoa Highway, Kamuela, Hawai'i, on Monday, May 22, 2017, at 10:00 a.m. 


 
PRESENT  Jobie M. K. Masagatani, Chairman 
  Doreen N. Canto, Maui Commissioner 
 Kathleen P. Chin, Kauaʻi Commissioner                 (left at 5 pm) 
 Gene Ross K. Davis, Moloka`i Commissioner 
             Wallace A. Ishibashi, East Hawai`i Commissioner    
 David B. Kaapu, West Hawai`i Commissioner  
 Michael P. Kahikina, Oʻahu Commissioner             (left at 2:36 pm) 


William Richardson, Oʻahu Commissioner
 Wren Wescoatt, Oʻahu Commissioner  
 
EXCUSED None 
 
COUNSEL Craig Iha, Deputy Attorney General 
  
STAFF William Aila Jr., Deputy to the Chairman 


Paula Aila, Information and Community Relations Manager  
Kahana Albinio, Acting Land Management Division Administrator 


 Dean Oshiro, Acting Homestead Services Division Administrator  
Kaleo Manuel, Acting Planning Office Manager 


 Norman Sakamoto, Acting Land Development Division Administrator 
 Michelle Brown, Secretary to the Chairman 
 James Du Pont, West Hawai`i District Office Supervisor 
 Halealoha Ayau, Acting Molokaʻi District Office Supervisor 
  Kualii Camara, Land Agent 
  Susie Richey, Secretary 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 


 
CALL TO ORDER   
Chair Masagatani called the meeting to order at 10:26 a.m. Nine (9) members were present at roll 
call.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  


 
MOTION/ACTION 
Moved by Commissioner Ishibashi, seconded by Commissioner Davis, to approve the agenda.  
Motion carried unanimously.  


 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Chair Masagatani asked if there were any amendments to the October 2015 Minutes.  There were 
none. 


  







Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting May 22 and 23, 2017, Kamuela, Hawai`i         Page 12 of 19


single-family home. Dryer areas use more water than wet areas, and in some areas, the counties 
don’t have water system standards. These demands were calculated in a recent update to the state 
water project, which was approved May 16, 2017. The long-term demand is 50-million gallons of 
water per day for both potable and non-potable needs on this island. These water demands don’t
include the lands that the HHC isn’t sure of what it’s going to do with the lands over the long-
term. The ways water gets to the DHHL properties is to work with the counties to extend existing 
water systems to DHHL water systems; create partnerships with other water systems, look to 
developing additional source and distributions, and secure the Department’s legal entitlements to
water as well as the means to enforce those legal entitlements. Few events of significance to this 
area have happened.  


 
 The National Park Service in 2013, petitioned the State Water Commission to designate the 


Keahole Aquifer as a groundwater management area. In groundwater management areas or 
surface water, people who want to develop water have to get diversion permits for good 
construction pump installation permits also have to get the water use permit. The water use 
permit, which is only issued in designated areas, one of the conditions is subject to rights in the 
DHHL. In the water rights management area, DHHL has clear and forceful rights to water. If you 
want water and the water has been allocated to other people, their permits are all conditioned on 
DHHL’s rights. K. Manuel added that the Department of Ag’s water system diverts streams into a 
60-million-gallon reservoir, which is on Hawaiian Home Lands, but the system is operated by the 
Department of Agriculture. From the reservoir, it flows down into a 100-million-gallon reservoir 
near the DHHL Pulehu residential community, which is also on Hawaiian Home Lands. This 
region has dual water systems.   
  


GENERAL AGENDA 


REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION 
 


ITEM J-3 Maxine Kahaulelio- Pu'ukapu Farm Lot 
 


M. Kahaulelio stated her testimony is a continuation of her Kapolei testimony regarding her 
horse. She resides on her Pu`ukapu farm lot. She stated that she wrote a letter of request to Jobie 
Masagatani on March 26, 2013, to apply for an RP to occupy lot No. 45, Ag lot, for her horses. 
Over time and events, the lot was given back to DHHL.  Water lines were being installed from the 
paved road to the dirt road leading to the Pu`ukapu pastoral lots. The pastures where the animals 
grazed were thick with dust and soot, which affected the animals. Her horse got sick. She knew 
she was not supposed to be on lot 45, but she put her horses on the lot, someone opened the gate 
for her. Her horse has since passed and is buried on lot 45.  
 
ITEM J-4 George Matthews- Prioritizing on Waitlist 


 
G. Matthews testified on an award that his sister received in May 2012, and was transferred to 
him in July 2013. Upon doing this, his sister fell to the bottom of the list. In August 2013, she had 
a time-stamped document stating that she was the successor to her father. Lynn Suber, former 
lessee, and current applicant said her final request is making sure that she is in her dad’s
position/number.  


 
ITEM J-5 Creighton Sanchez- Pu'ukapu Lease Transfer Request 


 







Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting May 22 and 23, 2017, Kamuela, Hawai`i  Page 1 of 19

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION  
Minutes of May 22, 2017 

Meeting held at Kuhio Hale, Kamuela, Hawai`i 

Pursuant to proper call, the 687th Regular Meeting of the Hawaiian Homes Commission was held at 
Kuhio Hale, 64-756 Mamalahoa Highway, Kamuela, Hawai'i, on Monday, May 22, 2017, at 10:00 a.m. 

PRESENT  Jobie M. K. Masagatani, Chairman 
Doreen N. Canto, Maui Commissioner 
Kathleen P. Chin, Kauaʻi Commissioner                 (left at 5 pm) 
Gene Ross K. Davis, Moloka`i Commissioner 
Wallace A. Ishibashi, East Hawai`i Commissioner 
David B. Kaapu, West Hawai`i Commissioner  
Michael P. Kahikina, Oʻahu Commissioner             (left at 2:36 pm) 
William Richardson, Oʻahu Commissioner
Wren Wescoatt, Oʻahu Commissioner  

EXCUSED None 

COUNSEL Craig Iha, Deputy Attorney General 

STAFF William Aila Jr., Deputy to the Chairman 
Paula Aila, Information and Community Relations Manager  
Kahana Albinio, Acting Land Management Division Administrator 
Dean Oshiro, Acting Homestead Services Division Administrator  
Kaleo Manuel, Acting Planning Office Manager 
Norman Sakamoto, Acting Land Development Division Administrator 
Michelle Brown, Secretary to the Chairman 
James Du Pont, West Hawai`i District Office Supervisor 
Halealoha Ayau, Acting Molokaʻi District Office Supervisor 
Kualii Camara, Land Agent 
Susie Richey, Secretary 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

CALL TO ORDER  
Chair Masagatani called the meeting to order at 10:26 a.m. Nine (9) members were present at roll 
call.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION/ACTION 
Moved by Commissioner Ishibashi, seconded by Commissioner Davis, to approve the agenda.  
Motion carried unanimously.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Chair Masagatani asked if there were any amendments to the October 2015 Minutes.  There were 
none. 



Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting May 22 and 23, 2017, Kamuela, Hawai`i  Page 12 of 19

single-family home. Dryer areas use more water than wet areas, and in some areas, the counties 
don’t have water system standards. These demands were calculated in a recent update to the state 
water project, which was approved May 16, 2017. The long-term demand is 50-million gallons of 
water per day for both potable and non-potable needs on this island. These water demands don’t
include the lands that the HHC isn’t sure of what it’s going to do with the lands over the long-
term. The ways water gets to the DHHL properties is to work with the counties to extend existing 
water systems to DHHL water systems; create partnerships with other water systems, look to 
developing additional source and distributions, and secure the Department’s legal entitlements to
water as well as the means to enforce those legal entitlements. Few events of significance to this 
area have happened.  

The National Park Service in 2013, petitioned the State Water Commission to designate the 
Keahole Aquifer as a groundwater management area. In groundwater management areas or 
surface water, people who want to develop water have to get diversion permits for good 
construction pump installation permits also have to get the water use permit. The water use 
permit, which is only issued in designated areas, one of the conditions is subject to rights in the 
DHHL. In the water rights management area, DHHL has clear and forceful rights to water. If you 
want water and the water has been allocated to other people, their permits are all conditioned on 
DHHL’s rights. K. Manuel added that the Department of Ag’s water system diverts streams into a 
60-million-gallon reservoir, which is on Hawaiian Home Lands, but the system is operated by the
Department of Agriculture. From the reservoir, it flows down into a 100-million-gallon reservoir
near the DHHL Pulehu residential community, which is also on Hawaiian Home Lands. This
region has dual water systems.

GENERAL AGENDA 

REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION 

ITEM J-3 Maxine Kahaulelio- Pu'ukapu Farm Lot 

M. Kahaulelio stated her testimony is a continuation of her Kapolei testimony regarding her
horse. She resides on her Pu`ukapu farm lot. She stated that she wrote a letter of request to Jobie
Masagatani on March 26, 2013, to apply for an RP to occupy lot No. 45, Ag lot, for her horses.
Over time and events, the lot was given back to DHHL.  Water lines were being installed from the
paved road to the dirt road leading to the Pu`ukapu pastoral lots. The pastures where the animals
grazed were thick with dust and soot, which affected the animals. Her horse got sick. She knew
she was not supposed to be on lot 45, but she put her horses on the lot, someone opened the gate
for her. Her horse has since passed and is buried on lot 45.

ITEM J-4 George Matthews- Prioritizing on Waitlist 

G. Matthews testified on an award that his sister received in May 2012, and was transferred to
him in July 2013. Upon doing this, his sister fell to the bottom of the list. In August 2013, she had
a time-stamped document stating that she was the successor to her father. Lynn Suber, former
lessee, and current applicant said her final request is making sure that she is in her dad’s
position/number.

ITEM J-5 Creighton Sanchez- Pu'ukapu Lease Transfer Request 



April 23, 2013 

Luna Ho'omalu,(chairman) Jobie Masagatani 

Koko'olua Komikina (fellow commissioners) 

Aloha, 

I come before you today to humbly ask for your assistance in 
obtaining a revocable permit for any vacant lots in the waimea 
agricultural subdivision. I have been utilizing lot #45 for my 
horses with the permission of George Hall who is a nephew of the 
late Samuel Kealanahele Jr who was the designated lessee. There 
were concerns regarding this lease and we were able to meet 
with our west Hawaii commissioner Leimana DeMante, along with 
Kama Hopkins, Robert Lindsey of OHA and Ian LeeLoy in June of 
2012@ Kuhio Hale in waimea. At that meeting George and I 
discussed the issues concerning my horse Kolohe. we also talked 
about the lease and brought in the real property Tax documents 
and statements showing his uncle's name as well as the Tax 
payments he had made through March/2012. At the end of our 
discussion the commissioners told us they would investigate and 
respond to the issue by the end of October 2012. As of today, 
there has been no resolutions or response from the parties that 
were present. so in February I spoke with the West Hawaii 
district Supervisor to inquire on the process of obtaining a 
revocable permit for the use of an agriculture lot for my 
animals. He instructed me on the process and I downloaded the 
request for a non-homesteading land use request form. I 
submitted the form on February 13, 2013. I received a response 
on March 6, 2013 from James DuPont that the chairman made a 
decision to issue a homestead lease instead. It is with great 
sadness that I read this response, since I myself have been an 
agricultural applicant since 1960 and am currently #909 on the 
waiting list. 

so at this time I am humbly requesting a 3-6 month extension 
from the May 5, 2013 letter to vacate lot #45 that was issued by 
James DuPont. I have been actively looking for other parcels of 
land that my horses could be relocated to. we have invested in 
fencing materials and caretaking on lot #45 over the years of 
approved use from the Kealanahele ohana. we are trying very hard 
to locate an area that is fenced to help with our expenses. 

I also would like to inquire on the use of the 4 unencumbered 
lots that were set aside for many years as a possible bypass 
road. If these 4 lots are to remain in that status, would my 

EKliJh ,t-JI
J-a C/-,-d3-ia 





From:
To:
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Monday, February 06, 2023 2:10:09 PM

Name

Faith Chase
Email

Message

Will be making introduction to a new Maui Beneficiary 
Association that helps new homesteaders stabilize their 
home, farming, and ranching building needs.
Would like to share screen to present a power point. I will 
email ahead of meeting date for Leah or whomever is 
assisting with meeting logistics.
Mahalo Nui, Faith

J-9



From:
To:
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Request to Testify on the J Agenda
Date: Thursday, February 02, 2023 8:44:40 AM

Aloha Lea,
I would like to testify before the DHHL Commission on Feb 21st 
or Feb 22nd. Please advise
Mahalo Bo Kahui

J-10



From:
To:
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Tuesday, February 07, 2023 11:35:18 AM

Name

Robert and Sharmaine Taua
Email

Message
We would like to present our testimony regarding trespassing and 
vandalism to the Board virtually at the February 22, 2023 meeting.

File

TAUA.pdf

J-11

https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/index.php?gf-download=2023%2F02%2FTAUA.pdf&form-id=7&field-id=7&hash=fc3561e16b2a442ddfb0e4c8413bed5d677ce8a2474c068c2d2c0083811d0e3e


We are taking this time to bring attention to DHHL Chairman Anderson, the Board and Enforcement of 
our complaint of trespassing and vandalism being done to our property.  
We recently filed an initial complaint via email to DHHL Enforcement on January 3, 2023 with 
reservations for additional documents to be submitted at a later date, in our quest to obtain police 
reports and write an explanation of our need to file a police report. On January 20, 2023 we dropped off 
a binder which included copies of police reports and a list of police reports regarding trespassing and 
vandalism that has occurred on our property since the beginning of 2018. Since dropping off the binder 
to Ross Kapeleia, we have not received a response. 
 
We filed a complaint in September 2, 2021 against our neighbor manually pushing their floodwater 
along our rock wall which will erode the foundation. On September 19 2022 we filed a second complaint 
for the same issue (a year after informing DHHL Enforcement) about the flood water issue and 
mentioned that we contacted the Department of Planning and Permitting.  Casey Corpuz of the 
Enforcement Department asked us to forward our correspondence with DPP along with DPP's 
recommendation. DHHL Enforcement informed us that this is a civil matter and nothing was done to 
address or rectifying the problem although we recommended that the neighbor enclose their wall along 
our property keeping their flood water on their property.  
 
We have taken our dilemma of trespassing and vandalism of our property to our 
Representative, Councilmember, Chief of Police Ballard and the Nanakuli neighborhood board. We have 
come to learn that DHHL has a responsibility to protect Hawaiian homesteaders of trespassing and 
vandalism being done on DHHL property. 
 
We have had experience filing a complaint with DHHL and how enforcement lacks in response to 
Homesteaders concerns. With the severity of our family's safety at stake we are personally notifying 
DHHL of the criminal acts being committed. With a new Commissioner on board who has experience in 
legislative decision making, we feel DHHL is better equipped and after 5 years of collecting evidence 
DHHL can put an end to these criminal acts. 
 
Mahalo,  
Robert and Sharmaine Taua   



From:
To:
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Tuesday, February 07, 2023 12:56:42 PM

Name

Kamuela Hambek
Email

Message

Regrading: Homestead Hale building

J-12



From:
To:
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Wednesday, February 08, 2023 2:55:29 PM

Name

Julie Louie
Email

Message

On behalf of our company Aiwohi Bros. Inc, I would like a response 
to our ongoing request to resolve our payment dispute that as of 
2/8/2023 is still not resolved. I attended the meeting in December of 
2019 and so I would like to hear what DHHL's plans are to assist in 
resolving it.

J-13


	Agenda
	Exhibits

	C ITEMS
	C-1 Awards
	C-2 Leg Updates
	C-3 Draft NHHBG Plan

	D ITEMS
	D-1
	D-2
	D-3
	D-4
	D-5
	D-6
	D-7
	D-8
	D-9
	D-10
	D-11

	E ITEMS
	E-1
	E-2 

	F ITEMS
	F-1
	F-3
	F-4

	G ITEMS
	G-1
	G-2
	G-3
	G-4

	J ITEMS



